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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Natice is hereby given that 35th Annual General Meeting of the members, halding Ordinary Shares of Masood Textila
Mills Limited, will be held at its Registered Office, Universal House, 17/1 Mew Civil Lines, Bilal Road, Faisalabad on
Monday, 28th Ociober, 2015 at 11.00 A.M. to transact the following business::

1. To confirm the minutes of the last Extracrdinary General Meeting held on 31st March, 2018.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Chairman's Review Report, Reports of Directors and Auditors together with
Audited Annual Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 30th Juna, 2018,

3. To approve the payment of cash dividend @ 15.00% (Rs.1.50 per ardinary sharae), as recommendad by the
Board of Directors.

4. To appoint Audtors and to fix their remuneration for the financial year ending 30th June, 2020. M's Riaz Ahmad
& Company, Chartersd Accountants, retire and being aligible offer themsalves for their re-appointment.

6. To consider any othar business that may ba placed baefora the meeting with the permission of tha chair,

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Faisalabad: 4" October, 2019 (COMPANY SECRETARY)

NOTES:

1. 5Share Transfar Baoks for Ordinary Shares of the Company will remain closad from 21st fo 28th October, 2018 (bath
days inclusiva) for the delermination of entitlement of cash dividend on Ordinary Shares. Physical ransfers / COS
Transactions 1Ds, received in order al Registared Offica of the Comparny or our Share Ragisirar, by the closa of
business on 189th October, 2019 will be treated in time.

2. Shara Transfer Books for Preferance Shares of the Comparmy will remain elosed fram 21st 1o 28th October, 2019 {bath
days inclusive) for detarmining the entillemeant of Prefarred Dhidend calculated at average six months KIBOR+200 bps
p.a. [R=.1.09 par shara). Physical transfers /| COS Transactions |Ds, recaived in order al Registerad Office of tha
Company or our Share Regisirar, by the close of business on 1%h Ociober, 2019 will be treated in time

3. A shareholder entitled to stlend and vota at this mesfing may appaint another shareholder as hislher proxy to attend
and vote on his'her behalf, The instrument appoinfing a Proxy and Power of Attorney or other authority under which it is
signed or notarially cerified copy of the Power of Attormey must be received at the Registered Office of the Company,
duly stampad, signad and wilnessad not later than 48 hours before tha mesting. An irstrument of Proxy applicatde for
mesting 5 sttached herewsth. However, Preference Shareholders are not enfitted to attend the meeting, since
Preference Shares carmy no voting rights

4_ Share Holders whose shares are deposited with Central Depository Sysiem [(CDS) are requesied to bring their
Computerzed National ldentity Card (CNIC) along with their Account Mumber in CDS for werification. In case of
corporate entity, the Board of Directors” Resolution/Power of Attormey with specimen signatures of the nominee shall be
produced (unless provided earlier) at the ime of the meeting

5. Pursuant to Finance Act, 2019, the Company is liable to withhold Income Tax (@ 15 % from the Filers and 30 % from
the Non-Filers under the provisions of Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, Kindly ensure your status from
Active Tax Payer's List, avalable at FBR's websile, before disbursement of Dividend by the Company. Individuals
without CNIC(s) will ba treated Non-Filers, since thesr status cannot be verified from FBR.

6. Physical Share Holders are requested to notify any change in their addresses immediately. The share halders claiming
axemplian from Zakal are reguirad to file thesr Declaration with our Shara Reqlstrar, Moreaver, the shara holdars wha
have not yet submitted their Compulenzed National |dentity Cards to the Company are requesied once again (o send
attesied copies thereof at their earliest. Otherwise, their Dividend will be withheld for lack of complete information.



mMtm

Wiasood Tastis M s ke

7. Physical Share Holders who have not yel provided their “International Bank Account Mumber (IBANY are reguired o
provide immediately their containing the title of account, along with Name of Bank, Branch Mame and Address, sinca
the Company is required to pay Cash Dividend through aelectronic mode, directly into the bank accounts of its share
holders.

8. Shareholders who have not collected their Dovidend/Physical shares so far are advised contad] our Share Ragstar 1o
collect’enguire about their Unclaimed Doidend or Share, if any

9. Pursuan to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017, the sharehalders rasiding in a city and halding at least 10% of
the total paid up share capital may demand the Company to provide the facility of video-link for participating in the
AGM. The demand for video-link facility shall ba recaived by the Share Registrar at the addrass givan harainabove at
least (¥) days pror to the date of the meeting on the Standard Form avadable on the Company's website:
wwwy. masoodiexdile com.

10. Pursuant to the provision of Saclion 223(6) of the Companies Acl, 2017, the Companies are parmitted to Circulale their
annual financial staternents, along with the Auditor's report, director review repont etc. ("Annual Report™) and the notice
ol Annual General Meeting ("Nolice™) to its shareholders by email. Sharehclders of the Company who wish o recaive
the Company’s Annual Repont and Maotice of Anrual General Mesting by E-mail are requested to provide the complete
Elactronic Commurscation Consent Form (available at the Company’s Wabsite) 1o the Company’s Share Ragistrar.
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW

It gives me immense pleasure to present the reporl onoverall pedformance of the Board and effectiveness of
its role in attaining the Company's targets and objectives for the year ended June 30, 2019.The board of
directors has carmed oul its fiduciary duties with a sense of objective judgment and in good faith in the best
interest of the company and its stakeholders through compliance of relevant laws and regulations.

During the year challenges to Pakistan economy have continued to remain in the shape of inflationary
pressure, increasing mark-up, significant depreciation of Pakistani rupee and toned-down of GDP growth
rate in comparison with last fiscal year. Despite these challenges, we strengthened our growth trajectory
andcontinue to achieve increase in turmover by 10.92% and increase in profit after tax by 19.71% over last
year. This accomplishment highlight the interest placed on us by our customers and persistent efforts and
commitment of our people- our most valuable asset,

It is also pertinent to mention that the performance of the Board has been par excellence. The Board
continuously reviews the Company business and advises the management on the key areas like strategic
planning, effective resources utilization, financial performance, capital deployment, matters related to human
and operational capacity and related capabilities.

| would conclude by extending my gratitude to the Board, Chief Executive Officer and management fortheir
valuable contributions towards the society and growth of Company, Our Company is well positioned for
continued prosperity and growth and also expect 2019-20 to bring improve benefits for all the stakeholders
and business partners.

Faisalabad:
04 October, 2019 CHAIRMAN
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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We are pleased to present the 35th Direclors’ Repor based on the resulis of business and operallons of the Company
together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2019 along with other reguired information
presoribed under the Listed Companies (Code of Corporaie Govemance) Regulations, 2007 and Companies Act, 2017,

Market Overview

Pakistan's expors during FY201% siood at WSS 22.979 billlion companed with USE 23.212 billon during FY2018 owing to
sirong negative price effect dominates the positive quantity effect, hence exports dedclined by 1 percent. However, textle
exports, which constitule mare than 80 percent, share of lotal exports, increased by 2.3 percent in value over the last year.
value added exparts of lexdie items like knitwear which comprises 14.4 percent of tolal exports increased Bath in quantity
and value by 107 and 128 peroent, respectively. Resdymade garments constituting shame of 12.5 percent in exports
increased both in guantity and value by 34 6 and 7.5 percant, respactively. Velue-added exports increased dus o growing
demand and improvement In export competittveness after exchange rate adjustment.

Company's Parformance

Our financial disciplines and firm assel base are fhe foundabon of our strong financial perfommanoe. Your Company
continued to show improved results on the basis of our positive workplace culture, that fosters mnovation, recognizes
performance and offers development opportunities, ensunng that we altract, retain and vest in thee best people.

During the financial year, your Comaany recorded tumover of Re, 24,211 billion against Rs. 30842 billion for the Same Pencd Last
Year [SPLY); with an increase of Rs 3388 billion (10.92% ) During he financial year pnded by 30 June 2019, the Cormpany eserned
a net profit of Rs. 1.332 billion (Eaminge par share: Rs. 1%.24 par share), a5 compared fo net profit of Rs. 1.113 billion {Esmings per
share: R 16.11 per share) for the SPLY, showing & healthy increase of 19.71 % Company has increased ds profilability duee o
commitment of managamani, thair coniribulion o affective cosl managemeant, betier funds wilization, hamessing e suppaort and
power of our community to deve positive and lasting chamge &1 the grassroots level and by improving overall opsrabng perdormance
of the: Company.

Einancial Highlights

2013 2018

{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
REVENUE 34,211,379 30,842,158
COST OF SALES (30,497,532} [26,820,855)
GROSS PROFIT 3,703,847 1,851,304
DISTRIBUTION COST 12,448,G7B) (2,063, 381)
ADMIMISTRATIVE EXPENSES (687674} (540 255)
OTHER EXFENSES [4&,E4%) (108.2328)
OTHER INGOME 2,353,372 1.070,524
FINANCE COST 11,203,112) (B, 395)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 1,748,106 1,304,579
TAXATION (415,898) (191.551)
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 1,332,408 1,113,048
EARMINGS PER S5HARE - BASIC  (RUPEES) 19.24 16.11

- DILUTED {RUPEES} 17,70 15,18

The textile Industry has besn hit hard due o the high cost of energy. finance cost, fuel prices coupled with upward rise in
price of prodection and inconsistent economic policies making Pakistan's exports uncomepetitive in the global market.
Maoreowver, prajeciians abaul low GDF grosdbs, igh infllation rate, uncerlain policy rle and the regicnal silualion has become
mara precanous for Pakistan. The Govermmment support in the form of availability of energy 8t reducad prices, contineation of
rebate scheme and release of funds against rebale daimstax refunds is imperative for industry to compete irtemationally,
The Government should take noleworthy measures to promobe the exports and devealop the indusirial sector of he couniry.
Tha Company have a vary promising future prospact and s well positionad for continued prospanty and growth.

Dividend

The Board of Directors in its maeating hedd on 04 Oclober 2018 has proposad 15 % Cash Dividend (Rs. 1.50 per shara} for
the approval of the members at the Annual General Mecting to be beld an 28 Qciober 2019,

The Company had lsaued 0,000 millon Preference Shares of the value of Rupees 800,000 millon, redemption of these
preference shares after the expiry of their maturity is at the ogtion of the Comparny. During FY2019, no redemption of
Preterence Shares was affected. Freference dividend is payable on the basis of the average six montha KIBOR+200 bps par
annum and accordingly Freference Dividend of Rupee 1.04 per ghare has been computed againat balance of 31,166,668

Preference shares.
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Corporate Governance

The Company s in compliant with he provisions of e Lisled Companios (Code of Corporale Governance] Requlations,
27 and Companies Act, 2017 as required by Secwilies & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Folowing are the
stalements on Corporabe and Financial Reporting Framework:

1, The Financial Statements presented by the management af the Company gives & Tair view of the state ol afairs, the
results of ds operations, cash Now and changes in equity;

£ pIIZIFIEI' boaks ol accounts have been maintained:

3. Accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preperetion of Financial Statements and accounting estimates
are based on reasonable and predent judgment;

4. Internstional Financial Reportng Standarde a5 applicable in Pakistan have been followed in preparation of Financisl
Staternents;

5. The sysbem al intemal conlrods, which s in place, is sound n design and has been effectively mplemsnted and
rmanitorad;

G, Thara is no significant doubt on the Gompany’s abifly b continue 25 2 going concem;

7. During the year ended June 30, 2019, tarm of the office of Directors expired and election for new Board of Carectors has
b bl unchiar [he refevant lawes, T eisiing Direclors ol he Company Tieed he seven nurmbier of Direclors which sene
alected in Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EQGM). Company elected two ingependent Directors namely Mr. Shabir Ahmed
and Mr. Shahid Igbal which raplaced retiring Diractors Mr. Mafloob Hussain and Mr. Fazal Ahmad respeclively. Mew Audit
Commitiee consisling M Shabir Almad Abid (Independent Direclor as Chairman), Me Maseer Ahmad Shah (Member), WMr.
Shahid Igbal {Membar) and Mew HR & Remunsration Committee corsisting M. Shahid igbel (Independent Director as
Chairman), Mr. Shahid Nazir Ahmad (Member), Mr. Shabir Ahmad Abid (Member),

4. There has besn no matenzl departure from the best practices of the corporate govemancs;

4. The Boerd of Directors has epproved & Remuneration Policy for Directors and Members of Senior Managemant. The
Company will not pay remunaration to its non-executive direclors excapt as meeting fee for aliending the Board meatings:

10, A reguired under P Lsled Comparnes [Code of Corporale governance] Reqguliations, 2007, (e Boand has underzaken
a formal process of self-evaluation of performance of the Board as a whole and its commitiees;

11, The Directors were appriged of their duties and responsisdities from time to time. Durng the year under revisw no
freining program was arrenged by the Company. One Board membars have the preecribed qualification end expeariance
raquirad for exempticn from the training program of Directors. One Director has already atiended directors’ training. Tweo
niwdy appointed director on the board will acquire tha OTP cartification within tha given fime frama. The rest will alsc obtain
carification wathin the spacified time;

12. Al transactions with related partles heve been exscuted at ami's length and have been disclossd In the financial
slalerments under redevant nobes

Siw mealings of 1he Board of Directors wera held during he Tnencal yadar, with the folowing allardance:

No. of Na. of
S Mo | MName of Directors Re-Elected/Retired Meetings |, mln;na Due
Attended

1. Mr. Shahid Nazir Ahmad Ra-Elected 4 il

2. Mr. Maseer Ahmad Shah Ra-Elecled i Li]

4 Mr. Matioob Hussain Retred 4 4

4. MIr. Fazal Ahmad Retired 4 4

5. Mr. Shoaib Ahmad Khan Ra-Electad 3 il
[Momines-MIT)

6. Ms. ChenYan Re-Elected 1 Li]
[Momines-Shanghai Challenge Tex Go.Lid.)

7. M. Shibén Yang Re-Electad L 6
[Nominee-Shanghal Challenge Tex.Co.Lid.)

& Mr. Shabir Ahmad Abid Elecbad 2 2

9. Mr. Shahid igbal Elected 2 2
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Likewize, five mestings of the Audit Committes were hedtd durng the financial year, with the following attendance:

Ho. af No. of
5.No | Mame of Directors Re-Elected/Retired Meetings Me atin- 5 Diti
Attended 4
1 Mr. Fazal Ahmad Retired 4 4
2 hir. Nasesr Ahmad Shah Re-Electad ] &
2 hir. Matloob Hussain Retired 4 4
4 Mr. Shabir Ahmad Abid Elected 1 1
5. Mr. Shahid Igbal Electad 1 1

The Statement of Compliance wilh Listed Companies {Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 and
Companies Acl, 2017 iz enclosed. Comparative financial data for the last six years i also annexed with the
Directors Report. The pattern of sharehaolding and categories of shareholders as of June 30, 2019, as required
under the Fakistan Stock Exchange Regulations, have been annaxed herewith along with the Praxy Farm.

External Auditors

The auditors Ms Riaz Abmeéd & Company, Charered Accountants, refires and being eligibla, has offered
themaebvas for their re-appaintment. The Audit Committes, the Board of Directors has recommended their re-
appointment as auditors of the Comparny for the nest financial year ending 3MthJune, 2020

Health, Safety, Environment and CSR

Health, Safety & Esvironment is our core value and the Company regularly lakes inibatives towards the
imprevamant of environment and well-being of society. Waea camy oul regular health and salaty awarenass
programs. The Comgpany has also provided firefighling equipment and vehicles at all of itls manufacturing
facilities. A dedicated clinic/dispensary is managed by the gualified team where 24/T7 ameamency services ars
pravided, We also ensure the compliance of our production facility with all the environmental standards.

CSR is strategic, building long term relationships with neighboring communities and stakeholders, Relationships
that are muteally beneficial enhance corporate reputation and respect for the Company's business and products,
and provide a sustainable competiive advantage.

Acknowledgement

The management iz thankful o the Company's siakeholders especially o the sharsholders, bankers and ils
customers for their continuing confidence in its preducts and services. The management also wishes o express
itz gratitude to all the Company's emplovees who have worked tirglessly, We appreciate their hard work, [oyalty
and dedication.

Faisalabad - -
04" October, 2019 DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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SIX YEARS FINANCIAL RESULTS

REVENUE

COST OF SALES

BGROSS PROFIT

DISTRIBUTION COST

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
OTHER EXPENSES

OTHER INCOME

FINANCE COST

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
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(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
MA1370 30842150 23393676 21180485 ZETOETIS M1
(B0417,032)  (20,990,850) (20,008.982) (19.971,238) (22.968,317) {20.435,316)
3,793,847 3,851,304 3,385,284 3212247 3,714,418 3935812
[2440878)  (20B3381) (147B0ET)  (1,3960M2) (1472973 (1159311
(697 674) |548,235) (480,722 (472 ,516) {477 482) [443,232)
(48,645) {108, 238) (10,675} (48,644 54 458 (61,996
2,363,372 1,070 524 218,041 31,212 325,588 45,327
[1.208,112) {595,395) (640,673 (T16,568)  (1.002893)  (1,142.45)
1,748,108 1,304,579 fa3,184 817,719 1,042,150 1,174,144
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VISION STATEMENT

A leading producer of textile products by providing the highest quality of products and services
to its customers.

To strive excellence through commitrment, integrity, honesty and team work.

Highly ethical company and be respected corporate citizen to continue playing due role in the
social and environmental sectors of the company.

To dewvelop and extremely molivated and professional trained work force, which would drive
growth through innovation and renovation.

Sustained growth in eaming in real terms.

MISSION STATEMENT

Dur mission is to be a dynamic, profitable and growth oriented company by providing good
return on investment to its shareholders and investors, quality products to its customers, a
secured and friendly environment place of work to its employees and to project Pakistan's

image in the interational market.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

Mame of company Masood Textile Mills Limited
Year Ended 30 Jure 2019

The company has complied with the reguirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1.

2

10.

The total number of directors are Seven (7) as per the following:
a) 5k (6) Male
b) One (1) Female

The composition of board is as follows:

1) Mr. Shahid MNazir Ahmad Executive Director

2} Mr. Shabir Ahmad Abid Indepenent Director

3} Mr. Shahid Igbal Indepenent Director

4) Mr. Maseer Ahmad Shah MNon-Executive Director
3) Ms Chen Yan Mon-Executive Director
&) Mr. Shibin ¥ang MNan-Execulive Direclor
T3 Mr. Bhoaib Ahmad Khan MNon-Executive Director

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed companies,
including this company {excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicabla),

The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriale sleps have been taken to
disseminate it throughoul the company along with its suppaorting policies and procedures,

The board has developed a vision/mission statemeant, overall corporate strategy and significant policias of the
company. A complete record of pariculars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were
approved or amended has been maintained,

All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
boardf shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations,

The meeatings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by
the board for this purposae, The board has complied with the reqguirements of Act and the Regulations with
respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meating of board.

The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

The Company slands complied with requirements of Director training program under CCG,
Name of Direcior who obtained cerdificate of ODTP / Exempted under the Regulations.

1) Mr. Shahid Mazir Ahmad Executive

2) Mr. Naseer Ahmad Shah Mon Executiva

31 Mr. Shabir Ahmad Abid Independent

4) Mr. Shahid Ighal Independent

The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Intermal Audit, including their
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the

Regulations.
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11. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.

12. The board has formed committeas comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee
i) Mr. Shabir Ahmad Abid Chairman
ii} Mr. Naseer Ahmad Shah Member
i} Wir. Shahid lgbal Mamber

b) HR and Remuneration Committee

1} Mr. Shahid Igbal Chairman
i} Mr. Shahid Nazir Ahmad Member
lii} Mr. Shabir Ahmad Abid Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committess have been formed, documented and adwvised to the
committes for compliance,

14. The frequency of meetings {quarterly'half yeary’ yeary) of the committee were as per following:

a) Audit Committee Every Quarter
b) HR and Remuneration Committee Once a year

15. The board has sel up an effective intemal audit function, which are considered suitably qualified and
experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the company,

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the
quality control review program of the ICAF and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or
any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the company and that
the firm and all itz partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines
on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAPR.

17.  The statutory auditars or the persons associated with them have not been appainted to provide other services
except in accordance with the Act. these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have
canfirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

Chairman Director
Faisalabad:

04" October, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT

To the members of Masood Textile Mills Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017 (“the Regulations™) prepared by the Board of Directors of Masood Textile Mills

Limited {“the Company”) for the year ended 30 June 2019 in accordance with the requirements of Regulation
40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Qur
responsibility is to review whether the Slatement of Compliance reflects the slatus of the Company's
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance
with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel
and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting
and internal confrol systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach, We are not
reguired to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls
or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such intemal controls, the Company's corporate governance
procadures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017.
We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the
related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committea, We have
not carmied out procedures to assess and determine the Company's process for identification of related parties
and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attenfion which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2018,

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

FAISALABAD
Date: 04 October, 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of Masood Textile Mills limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

Wa have audited the annexad financial statements of Masood Textile Mills Limited ("the Company’), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in egquity. the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, o the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our apinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of
financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive incoms, the statemeant of changes in
aquity and the statement of cash flows logether with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (X1X of
2017}, in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at
30 June 2019 and of the prafit, other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Infernational Standards on Awditing (15As) as applicable in Pakistan, Our
respansibilities under those standards are further descrbed in the Auditor's Responsibiies for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Intermational
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professions! Accountants as adopted by tha Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (‘the Code’) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibiliies in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriste to provide a basis for
Qur ogEnion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that. in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current pericd. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming cur opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Faollawing are the key audil matters:

3; Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our audit
1. | Inventory existence and valuation

Cur proceduras over existenca and valuation of inventory

Inventories as at 30 June 2019 amounting o Rt Bk e ok e
L]

Rupees 9526426 million represented a
material position in the statement of financial Ta test the quantity of inventaries at all locations,
position, break up of which is as follows:; we assessed the coresponding inventory

- Stores, spare parts and loose tools of abservation instructions  and  paricipated  in

Rupees 1,780.174 million

- Stock in trade of Rupees 7 746252
rrilllian
The business is characterized by high wvolume
serial production and the valuation and
existence of imventories are significant to the
business. Therefore, considered as one of the
key audit matters.

Inventories are steted at lower of cost and net
realizable value, Cost is determined as per
accounting policy disclosad in Nate 2.6 to the
financial statemants.

At year eand, the valuation of inventories s
reviewad by management and the cost of
inventories is reduced where it is forecasted
1o be sold below cost.

Usable stores, spare pars and lpose tools are
valued at moving average cost, raw matenals

invenlory counts on sites. Based on samgles, we
performed test counts and compared the quantities
countad by wus with the results of the counts ol the
managamenl.

For a sample of inventory items, re-performed the
weighted average cosl calculaton and compared
the weighted average cost appearing on valuation
shests.

We tested that the ageing report used by
management comectly aged inventory items by
agreeing a sample of aged inventory items (o the
last recorded inwvoice.

On a sample basis, we tested the net reslizable
value of inveniory items to recent selling prices and
re-performed the calculation of the inventory write
davn, if any.

In the context of our testing of the caloulation, we
analyzed individual cost components and raced
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Key audit matters

‘are valued at annual average basis whereas,

costing of work-in-process and finished goods
is considerad to carmy more significant risk as
the cost of material, labor and manufacturing
overhaads s allcaled on the basis of
comglex formulas and involvas management
judgment.
The determination of whether inventories will
be realized for a2 value less than cost requiras
managaemenl o exercise judgment and apply
assumptions. Management undertake the
following procedures for determining the level
of write down reguired:

* Lse inventory ageing reporis together
with historical rends to estimata the
likely future salability of show maving and
older inventory items,

#  Parform a line-by-ine analysis of
remaining inventories to ensure it s
stated at the lower of cost and net
realizable value and a specific write
down is recognized, if required.

For furthar information on inventorias, refar 1o

the fallowing:

-  Summary of significant accounting
policies, Inventories (Wote 2.6 1o the
financial statements).

- Stores, spare parts and loose tools (Mote
17) and Stock in trade (Note 18) to the
financial statements.

How the matters were addressead in our audit

documerts.

* \We also made ingquiries from management,
including those outside of the finance function, and
considerad the results of our lesting above lo
determine whether any specific write downs were
required.

* \We alzo assessed the adequacy of the disclosures
made in respect of the accounting policies and
related notes to the financial statements.

Capital expenditure

The Company is investing significant amounts
in its operations and there are a number of
areas whera management judgment impacts
the camying wvelue of properly, plant and
equipment and ifs respective depreciation
profile. These include among others, the
decision 1o capilalize or expense costs; and
review of uselul life of the assals including the
impact of changes in the Company’s strategy.

We focused on this area since the amounts
hawe a significant impact on the financial
position of the Company and there is
significant management judgment reguired
thal has significant impact on the reparting of
the finencial position far the Company.
Therefore, considered as one of the key audit
matters.

For further information, refer to the following:

= Summaryof significant accounting
policies, Property, Plant, Equipment and
Deprecation (Mote 2.5 fo the financial
slatemeants).

Praperty, Plant and Equipment (Note 14 to

the financial statements).

Cur proceduras included, but were not limited to:

= \We lested operaling effectiveness of controls in
place aver the property, plant and equipment cycle
including the controls over whether costs incurred
on activities is capital or operating in nature.

* \We evaluated the appropriateness of capitalization
policies and depreciation rates,

= We perfarmed tests of details on costs capitalized,

= We verfied the accuracy of management's
calculation used for the impaimmant tasting,
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3; Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our audit

3. Revenue recognition
The Company recognized revenue of Rupees | Our procedures included. bul wene not limited to:

34,211,379 million for the year ended 30 June = Wa obialnad o iidersianding of e Ao

2019, & :
rela o of and testing th
We identified recognition of revenue as a key ﬂmmﬂm' g mwmﬂnggﬁmﬁgs:
audit matter because revenue is one of the dkﬂb‘ll L e DA fing of ol
key performance indicator of the Company ng 'E'E"_'
and gives rise to an inherent risk that revenue * We compared a sample of revenue transactions
could be subject to misstatement b mestl recorded during the year with sales orders, sales
expectations or targels. invoices. defivery documents and other relevant
For futher information on revenue underlying documents.
recognition, refer to the: following: *  We compared a sample of revenue transactions
_ T reconded around the year-and with the sales orders,
sﬂsmnﬁngpdﬁﬁu.sgﬂlwmm salas invoices, delivery documenis and other
recognition (Note 2.10 ko the relevant underlying documentation to assess if the
financial staternents). related revenue was recorded in the appropriate
= accounting period.
wﬂ;m;ﬁ . e + We assessed whether the accounting policies for

revenue recognition complies with the requirements
of IFRS 15 TRevenue from Confracis with
Cusiomers’

* We compared the detail of a sample of joumal
énines posted io revenue accounts during the year,
which met certain specific risk-based criteria, with
the relevant underlying documentation.

* We also considered the appropriateness of
disciosures in the financial statemants.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon
Management is responsible for the other information. The ofher information comprises fhe information included in the
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's repor thereon.

Qur opinion on the financial statemenis does not cover the ofher information and we do noi express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our aedit of the financal stalements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
50, consider whether the other information is malerially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
ohtained in the audit or othersise appears o0 be matenally misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is & matenal misstatement of this ofher informafion, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
accounting and reporiing standards as applicable in Pakistan and fhe requirements of Companies Act. 2017 (XX of
2017) and for such intemal confrol a5 management delermines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstalement, whether doe 1o frawd or emor,

In preparing the financial statemenis, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concerm, disclosing. as apphcable, matiers related i going concem and using the going concem basis of
accounting unless management either intends 1o kquidate the Company or 10 ceéase operalions, or has no realistic
altemative but to do so.

Board of directors is responsible for oversesing the Company's financial reporting process
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as & whole are frea from
material misstatement, whether due o fraud or emor, and to ssve an audidor's report that includes our opinion
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaraniee that an audit conducied in accordance with
ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always delect a malenal misstatement when it exists. Misstalemenis can arise from
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fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected o
influence the economic decisions of users laken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 15As as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Idanfify and assass lhe risks of materal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform gudit procedures responsive to those risks, and oblain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for cne resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omizsions,
misrepresentalions, or iha overnde of internal contbrol,

- Obtain an understanding of intemal contrel relevant to the awdit in order to design auwdit procedures that are
appropriate in the crocumstancas, bul not for the purpose of exprassing an opinion on the affecliveness of the
Company's intarnal contral,

n Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.
. Conclude on the approprigleness of managemeant's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based

on ihe audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to evenis or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a materal uncertainty
exizts, wa are reguired to draw attention in our auditors report o the related disclosures in the inancial slalemanis or,
if such disclosures are inadequata, o modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidance oblained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to confinue
as a going concem.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whelher the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in & manner that achieves fair
presentation,

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify durng cur audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably ba
thought 1o baar on our independance, and where applicable, relaled safeguards,

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we detarmine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the financial statemants of the curent perod and are therefore the kay audit malters, We describe these
matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matier or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matier should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of deoing so would reasonably be expected to oubweigh the public interest benafits of such
camminication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on cur audit, we further report that in our opinion:

aj proper books of account have been kept by the Company as reguired by the Companies Act, 2017
(HIX of 2017);
b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the

statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in
canformity with the Companias Act, 2017 (XX of 2017) and are in agreament with the boaks of account and relums;

) investmanis made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year wera far the purpose of the
Company's business; and
d) Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XM of 1980), was deducted and

deposited in Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Liagat Ali Panwar.
RIAZ AHMAD &COMPANY

Chartered Accountants

Faisalabad

Date: 04 October, 2019
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL

NOTE 2019 2018
{ RUPEES IN THOUSAND )

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorized share capital

125 000 000 (2018: 125 000 000) ordinary shares of

Rupees 10 each 1,250,000 1.250,000
&0 000 000 (2018: 60 000 000) preferance shares of
Rupees 10 each G00.000 600,000
1,850,000 1,850,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up share capital 3 086 666 086 666
Capital reserves
Share premium 4 1,375,000 1,375,000
Redemption fund 4 128,333 128,333
Surplus on revaluation of freehold land 040,234 800,234
Revenue reserves ] 8,107,506 6,945,641
Total equity 11,497,739 10,335,874
LIABILITIES
NOMN-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long term financing & 4,299 484 4 650,568
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease 7 21,701 6,816
Deferred liability for gratuity a8 F70,256 724,353
5,081 441 5,381,737
CURRENT LIAEILITIES
Trade and other payables g 3,889,182 2,676,634
Linclaimed dividend 33,213 10,813
Accrued mark-up 10 257,624 191,768
Shott term borrowings 1 14,280, 366 11,962,878
Current portion of non-cumrent liabilities 12 1,669,188 1,468,563
Provision for taxation 415,698 191,531
20,545,271 16,503,387
TOTAL LIABILITIES 25,636,712 21,885,124
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 13
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3734451 32,220,998

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement under section 232{1) of the Companies Act, 2017;

The Chief Executive Officer of the Company is presently out of the country. Therefore these financial
statements have been signed by two Directors and Chief Financial Officer as required under section
232 (1) of the Companies Act, 2017

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR



POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2019

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and eguipment

Long term advances

Long temm investment

Long term security deposits

CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spare pars and looze tools

Stock in trade

Trade debts

Loans and advances

Short term deposits and prepayments
Other raceivables
Short term investment

Cash and bank balancas

TOTAL ASSETS

NOTE

14

15

16

1r

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

2019

{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

2018

11,162,527 10,028,337
1] 1.814
476,076 -
75,511 47,110
11.714.774 10,077,261
1,780,174 1,579,156
7,746,252 5,810,871
10,708,309 9,276,084
362,144 380,772
1,171,004 939,770
3,171,331 3,536,704
100,000 -
180 463 620,380
25419677 22,143,737
37134451  32,220998

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 20 JUNE 2019

REVENUE

COST OF SALES

GROSS PROFIT
DISTRIBUTION COST
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
OTHER EXPENSES

OTHER INCOME

FINANCE COST

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

TAXATION
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC

- DILUTED

The annexed notes form an integral par of these financial statements.

Statement under section 232(1) of the Companies Act, 2017:

(RUPEES)

(RUPEES)

MOTE

25
28

27
28
28
30

b

32

i3

33

2018
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2018

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

34,211,379 30,542,150
(30.417,532)  (26,950,855)
4,793 847 3,851,304
(2,449,678 (2,063,381)

(697.674) (549,235)

(48 B4D) (108,238)
2,353,372 1,070,524
{1,203,112) (BOG,395)
1,748,106 1,304,579
{415,698) (191.531)
1,332,408 1,113,048

f——— ————— "} -
19.24 16.11

17.70 15.18

The Chief Executwe Officer of the Company is presantly out of the country. Therefore these financial statemenis
hawve been signed by two Directors and Chief Financial Officer as required under section 232 (1) of the

Companias Act, 2017.

DIRECTOR

MMRECTOR

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

2019 2018
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 1,332,408 1,113.048

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/ INCOME

ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss;

Femeasurements arising on defined benefit obligation (34,305) 18.821

ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss = 5

Other comprehensive (loss) | income for the year (34,305} 158.821

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 1,298,103 1,131,869

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements,

Statement under section 232(1) of the Companies Act, 2017:

The Chiefl Executive Officer of the Company is presently oul of the country. Therefore these financial stalemenls
have been signed by two Directors and Chief Financial Officer as required under section 232 (1) of the
Companies Act, 2017,

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF CHAMGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR EMDED 30 JUNE 2019
RESERVES
CAPITAL REVEMUE
CAPITAL S i TOTAL g&:ﬁ!—"f
Share |Rodemp-|revaiston| o 4 oy | Gener | Pited | Subintal
precnium | bon fund | of [reshod
prafil
fared
—r e | RYPEES I THOLSBAD] —— oo — - i

Balance as at 30 June 2017 GREBeE 1375000 128333 GOOZM 24000587 THAN0 SM2EET SOSTIET 83600 5,247 G000
Transachions with owners:
Cwidenc at tha rate of Rupaes 1.75
per share (Ordinary sharas) (118125 (1IR125) (118,125 (116,125
Cividenc at the rate of Rupses 0.81
[ Shand |Preleence Shants) = = = 125477 (25,470 (23470 25 ATH
Prafit tor the vear 11i3ma ] 1192me ) 1093048 1,793,048
Oihar cermprehansive income for B yaar 2 P 18521 18621 18,421 BAH
Tatal compretansve noorme bor the year 2 = - AMEA 1139888 1131888 4,131,860
Balance as at 30 June 2018 aEE6eE 1 07H000 128333 SO0ZM RADRSET TAW 6X1141  EAEH 9H9.08 058
Ajustmeant on adopon of IFRS- 15
(Mote 2.10) - : z Faon A (7.2} {7,201
Acjustment an adapdian of IFRE-5
[Mote 212 . (2.2 |2.283) (2,233 12,283
Ad|usied total equity as al 1 July 218 935666 1,375,000 12833  SOOZM 2400567 74500 B221547 EO0614T 93714 0,326.380
Tranzactions with awners
Dividand at the raie of Rupees 1.50
per ghare (Ordinary shams) . . - (0EED (0280 (10125 [701250)
Cwidenc at the rate of Rupses 0,62
per shzre |Preference shares) (Z543)  [35454) (25494 125,404)
Prafit for the vear - - - | tAEADE | 1aaZd0e ) 1aaR408 ] 1332408
Dithar cormprehiarsie lass far the year = g = Al sl i30s) (34, 305
Tatal comprehensive ncome fgr the vear - 1ZEA0E 12803 1298103 1,286,109
Balance as at 30 June 2019 QEs666 1375000 128333  S00ZM  Z400587 TS0 TAERO06 BT E0E 10511073 1457739

The annexad natas form an irfegral part of thesa financiad siataments.

Statement under section Z32{1) of the Companies Act, 2017:
The Chisf Executive Officer of the Company is presanty out of the country. Thenafors these financia! statements have baen signed by feo Directors and
Chasf Financial Officer a5 requred under secton 232 (1} of tha Companies Act. 2007

DIRECTOR

DIRECTOR

CHIEF FINAMCIAL OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 2018 2018
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations 14 1,464,793 59,936
Finance cost paid (1,137,256) {831,325)
Income tax paid (356,556) {310, B68)
Dividend paid to ardinary shareholders (78,850} (117,745)
Dividend paid to preference shareholders (25,494) (25.470)
Gratuity paid {221,501) {70,946)
Met decraase in long term advances 1,154 6,335
Met (increase) / decrease in long term security deposits (28,401} 277

Met cash used in operating activities (382.110) (1,288.808)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment h5, 327 6d, 395
Capital expenditure on property, plant and eguipment (1,966 936) (2,410.596)
Investment made (100,000} -

Met cash used in investing activities (2,011,609) (2,346.201)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from keng term financing 1,049,138 1,044 867
Repayment of long term financing (1,195,945} {715,941)
Repayment of liabilities against assets subject to finance lease (16,879) {30,286)
Shaort term borrowings - net 2,317 ABB 3,054,930

Met cash from financing activities 2,153,802 3,353,570

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (239,917) (282.436)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

THE BEGINMING OF THE YEAR 620,380 Q02,816

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

THE END OF THE YEAR [NOTE 24) 380,463 820,380

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement under section 232(1) of the Companies Act, 2017:

The Chief Executive Officer of the Company is presenily out of the country, Therefore these financial stalements have been
zigned by two Directors and Chief Financial Officer as required under section 232 (1) of the Companies Act, 2017.

DIRECTOR

D

DIRECTOR

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Masood Texiile Mills Limited is & public limited company incorporated under the Companies Act, 1913 [(Mow
Companies Act, 2017) and listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX). lis registered office is situated at
Universal House, P-1711, MNew Civil Lines, Bilal Road. Faisalabad. The main ohjects of the Company are
manufaciuring and sale of cotton / synthetic fiber yarn, knitted ! dyed fabrics and garments,

Geographical locations and addresses of all business units (except for the registered office) of the
Company are as follows:

Manufacturing Units Address

Spinning, Knitting and dyeing units 32 Kilometers, Shetkhupura Road, Fasalabad

Spinning Unit Satyana Road, Faisalabad

Stitching Unit Sargodha Road, Faisalabad

Stitching Units Mishatabad, Faisalabad

Stitching Unit Chak Jhumra Road, Nishatabad, Faisalabad

Stitching Unit Hajiabad, Sheikhupura Road, Faisalabad

Stitching Unit Faisalabad Garments City Company, Khurianwala, Faisalabad
Stitching Unit Small Scale Industrial Estate, Faisalabad

Liason offica 13-Kilometer, Bhubatian Chowk, Daefence Road, Lahora
Liason office Office Mo, 308 - 307, Gul Tower, LI Chundrigar Road, Karachi

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant aceounting policies applied in the praparation of these financial stalemeants are sat out below. Thase
pdicies have been consistently applied 1o all years presented, unless otherwise stated:

Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. Tha accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

-Imternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
{lASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards {(IFASs) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP), as notified under the Companies Act, 2017,

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs and IFASs, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followad,

Accounting convention

These financial staternents have been prepared under the historical cost conventicn, except for the following:
» Deferred liability for gratuity which is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation at present value (Note 8)

* Freehold land grouped in operating fixed assets which is carmied at fair value (Mote 14,1

26
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¢} Critical accounting estimates and judgmentis

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires the use of
certain crtical accounting estimates. It also requires tha management to exarcise its judgmeant in the process of
applying the Company's accounting polices. Estimates and judgmeants are continually evaluated and are basad on
historical experienca and othar factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to ba reasonable
under the circumstances,. The areas where various assumptions and eslimates are significant to the Company's
financial statements or where judgments were exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

Deferred liability for gratuity

Cerain actuafal assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements for
determination of present value of gratuity. Any change in these assumptions in future years might affect the cumant
and remeasurament gains and lossas in those years,

Taxation

In making the estimates for income tax currently payabie by the Company, the managemeant takes into account the
current income tax law and the dacisions of appellate authorties on certain issues in the past

Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments

The estimate for revalued amount of freehold land is based on valuation parformed by external professional valuer
and recommendation of technical teams of the Company. The said recommendations also include estimates with
respect to residual values and depreciabla lives. Further, the Company reviews the value of the assets for possible
impairment on an annual basis. Estimates with respect to residual values and useful lives and pattern of flow of
economic benefits are based on the analysis of the management of the Company. Any change in the estimates in
future years might affect the carrying amounts of tha respeciive itermns of property, plant and equipmeant with a
comespanding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

Inventories

Met realizable value of inventones is determined with reference to curmently prevailing selling prices less estimatad
axpendilure o make sales,

Allowance for expected credit losses
The sllowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgement. i is based on

the |ifalime axpecled credil loss, based on the Company's experience of aclual cradil loss in pasl years,

Revenue from contracts with customers involving sale of goods

When recognizing revenue in relation to the sale of goods o customers, the key performance obligation of the
Company is considerad (o be the point of delivery of the goods to the customer, as this is deemed (o be the time
that the customer obtains control of the promised goods and therefore the benefits of unimpeded access.

d) Standards, interpretation and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective
in currant year and are relevant to the Company

Following standards, interpretation and amendments fo published approved accounting standards are mandatory
far the Company's accounting perods beginning on or after 01 July 2018

= IFRS 8 'Financial Instruments”

= IFRS 15 ‘Revenus from Contracts with Cusiomers'

+ [FRS 15 (Ameandments), ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customars’

= IFRIC 22 'Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’

= Annual Improvemeants o IFRSs: 2014 — 2016 Cycle

The Company had to change its accounting policies and make certain adjustments without restating prior year
results following the adoption of IFRS 15 and IFRS 9. These are disclosed in Mote 2,10 and Mote 2.12 respectively.
Most of the other amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognized in prior pericds and
are not expected to significantly affect the current or future pericds.
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e} Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year but not relevant
to the Company

There are other amendments to published approved accounting standards that are mandatory for accounting perods
beqginning on or after 01 July 2018 but are considerad not o be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the
Company's financial statements and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

f) Standards, interpretation and amendmeants to published approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective but relevant to the Company

Following standards, interpretation and amendments to exsting standards have been published and are mandatony
for the Company’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2019 or later periods:

IFRS 16 'Lease’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019). IFRS 16 specifies how an
entily will recognize, measure, present and disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessee accounting
model, requining lessees to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less
or the underying asset has a low value. Lessors continue to classify leases as operating or finance, with IFRS 16
approach to lessor accounting substantially unchanged from its predecessor, 1AS 17 'Leases'’. IFRS 16 replaces
|AS 17, IFRIC 4 "Determining Whether an Arangement Conlaing a Lease’, SIC-15 'Operating Leases—Incentives'
and SIC-27 ‘Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’. The managemant of
the Company is in the process of evaluating the impacts of the eforesaid standard in the Company's financial
siatements.

Amendments to IFRS 8 (effective for annual penods beginning on or after 01 January 2019) clanfy that for the
purpose of assessing whather a prepaymeant faature meats the Solaly Payments of Principal and Interest ('SPPT)
condition, the pary exercising the option may pay or receive reasonable compensation for the prepayment
irrespective of the reason for prepayment. In other words, prepayment features with negative compensation do not
automatically fail SPPl. The amendments are not likely to have significant impact on the Company's financial
slataments.

IFRIC 23 "Uncertainty over Income Tax Treaiments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 31 January
2019). The interpretation addresses the determination of taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under 1AS 12 ‘Income
Taxes'. It specifically considers: whether tax freatments should be considered collectively; assumptions for taxation
authonties’ examinations; the determination of taxable profit {tax loss), fax bases, unused fax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates; and the effect of changes in facts and circumstances. The interpretation is not expecited o
have a material impact on the Company's financial statements.

Amendments to |AS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ and IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Emors’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 Janwary 2020). The
amendments are intendad to make the definition of matendal in 1AS 1 easier to understand and are not intended 1o
altar the underying concept of materiality in IFRS. In addition, the IASE has also issued guidance on how to make
malerality judgements when praparing general purpose financial slalements in accordance with IFRS,

Amendments to |AS 19 'Employea Benefiis'- Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (affective for annual
periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019). The amendments clanfy that on amendment, curtailment or
satfiement of a defined benefit plan, & company now uses updated actuarial assumpfions to determine its current
sarvice cost and net interest for the period; and the effect of the asset cailing is disregarded when calculating the

gain or loss on any settlament of the plan and is deall with separataly in stateament of other comprahansive income,
The application of the amendments is not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial statements.

On 12 December 2017, IASB issued Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 2015 - 2017 Cycle, incorporating
amendments to four IFRSS more specifically in |5 12 ‘Income Taxes' and 1AS 23 ‘Borrowing Cosls', relevant o the
Company. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019. The
amendments have no significant impact on the Company's financial stalements and have lherefore nol beean

analyzed in detail.
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2.2

2.3

On 20 March 2018, the IASB has issued a revised Conceptual Framework. The new Framework: reintroduces the
terms slewardship and prudence; inlmduces a new asset definiion that focuses on rghls and a new liability
definition that iz likely to be broader than the definition it replaces, but does not change the distinction between a
liability and an aquity instrument; removes from the assel and lability definitions referencas to the expectad flow of
economic benefits—~this lowers the hurdle for identifying the existence of an asset or liability and puts more emphasis
on reflecting uncertainty in measurement; discusses historcal cost and currant value measures, and provides soma
guidance on how the |1ASE would go about selecting a measurement basis for a particular asset or liability: states
that the primary measure of financial perfformance ig profil or lo8s, and that only in exceptional circumstances will
the IASE use other comprehensive income and only for income or expenses that arise from a change in the current
value of an assel or liability, and discusses uncertainty, de-recognition, unit of account, the reparting entity and
combined financial statements. The Framework is not an IFRS and does not override any standard, so nothing will
change in the shorl term. The revised Framework will be usad in fulure standard-selling decisions, bul no changes
will bee made to cumment IFRSs. Preparers might also use the Framework to assist them in developing accounting
policies where an issue is not addressed by an IFRS. It is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01
January 2020 for preparars that develop an accounting policy based on tha Framework.

Standards and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective and not
considered relevant to the Company

There are other standards and amendmeants to published approved accounting standards that are mandatony for
aocounting perinds beginning on or after 01 July 2019 but are considerad not to be relevant or do not have any
significant impact on the Company's financial statements and are therefore not detailed in these financial
statements.

Staff retirement benefit

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees who have completed the
minimum qualifying period of service as defined under the schema. The Company's obligation under this schame is
determined through actuarial valuation caried under Projected Linit Credit Method. Latest actuanal valuation has
been camried on 30 June 2018. The method invoives making assumplions about discount rates, future salary
increases and mortality rates, Due to the long term nature of the benefit, such astimates are subject to certain
uncertainties. Significant assumptions used to carry out the actuarial valuation have been disclosed in Note 8.4 to
these financial statemeanls,

Remaasurements changes which comprise acluaral gains and losses are racognized immediately in other
comprehansive incoma.

Functional and presentation currency along with foreign currency transactions and translation

ltems included in the financial statermanis of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company ocperates {the functional currency}), The financial statements are
prasented in Pak Rupeas. which is the Company’s functional and presentation curency. All monatary assats and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date.
Transactions in fareign currencias are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of tha
transactions. Foreign exchange geins and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
tranzlation at year end axchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denaminated in foreign cumencies ara
charged or credited to statement of profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into Pak Rupees al exchange rates pravailing at the date of
tranzaction. Mon-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency that are stated at fair value are
translated info Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date when fair values are determinad.
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24 Taxation

Current

The Company falls in the ambit of presumptive tax regime under section 168 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,
Pravision for income tax is made in the financial statements accordingly. However, provision for tax on other income
is based on faxable income at the curent rates after considenng the rebales and tax credils available, if any. The
chargea for current tax also includes adjusiments, whers considerad nacessary, to provision for lax mads in pravious
years arising from assessments framed during the vear for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is sccounted for using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising from
differances betwean the camying amount of assets and liabiliies in the financial statements and tha correspanding
tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabiliies are generally recognized for all
taxable temporary differencas and defarred tax assefs to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the deductible termporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based
on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or
credited in the statement of profit or loss, excepl fo the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognizad in other comprahansive income
ar directly in equily, respectively,

2.5 Property, plant, equipment and depreciation

a) Owned

FProperty, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairmeant loss
except freehold land which is stated at cost / revalued amount less any identified impairment loss. Capital work-in-
progress is stated at cos| less any identified impairmant loss, Cost of property, plant and aguipmeant signifies
historical cost, revalued amount, bormowing cost pertaining o erection / construction period as referred in Mote 2.7
and directly attributable cost of bringing the assels o working condition,

Increases in the carrying amounts ansing on revaluation of freehold land are recognized, in other comprahansive
income and accumulated in revaluation surplus in shareholders' equity. To the extent that increase reverses a
dacraase praviouzly recognizad in the statameant of profit or loss, the increase is first recognized in the statement of
profit or lpss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other
comprehensive incoma to the extent of the remaining surplus atiributable (o the assetl; all other decreasaes are
charged io the statameant of profit or loss.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that thae fair value of a revalued asset doas not differ
materially from iis carrving amount.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separale asset, as appropriate,
anly whan it iz probable that future economic benefits associated with the itarm will low to the Company and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
during the pariod they are incurred.

b) Leased - Finance Lease

Leases where the Company has substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership are classified as finance lease.
Assels subject to finance leasa are capitalized al the commencement of the lease term at the lowear of present value
af minimum lease payments undar the lease agreements and the fair value of the leased assels, sach determined
al the inception of the lease.

The related rantal obligation nat of finance cost is included in liabilities against assels subject 1o finance lease. Tha
liabilites are classified as current and long term depending upon the iming of paymeanis.

@
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Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost so as to achieve a constant rate on the
balance outstanding. The finance cost is charged to the statement of profit or loss over the lease term.

Gain on sale and lease back of operating fixed assets is deferred and amorized over the lease term and koss on
sale and lease back of operating fixed assetfs is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Leased — Operating Lease / ijarah confracts

Leases, where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases (! ijarah contracts. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives recaived from the
les=or and jarah contracts) are charged (o the statement of profit or logs on a sfraight line basis over the lease term.

Depraciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is charged to income on reducing balance method at the rates given
ir Mote 141 to write ofl the cost over their expected useful life. Tha Company charges depreciation on additions
from the date when the asset is available for use and on deletions up to the date when asset is de-recognized. The
residual values and useful lives are reviewed by the management, at each financial year end and adjusted if impact
on depreciation is significant.

De-recognition

An iterm of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized on disposal or when no future economic beneflils ane
expected from its use or disposal. Any gein or loss aising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the

difference between the net disposal proceeds and carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the assel is de-recagnized

Inventories

Inveniories, excepl for stock in transit and waste stock / rags, are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is determined as follows:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools
Usabla stores, spare parts and loose todls are valued pincipally at moving average cost, while items considerad
obzolete are carned at nil value. In transit stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at cost comanising invoice
value plus othar charges paid thareon.

Stock in trade

Cost of raw materals, work-in-process and finished goads is determined as follows:

(Iy  For raw materials = Annual average basis.

(illy For work-in-pracess = Average manufacturing cost including & portion
and finished goods af production overheads,

Materials in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other chames paid thereon. Waste stock / rags
are valued at net realizable value.

Met realizable value signifies the astimated selling prica in the ordinary course of businass lass the astimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make a sale.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which these are incurred except to the extent of
bomowing costs that are directly attibutable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such
borrowing cost, if any, is capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.

Provisions

Provisions ara recognized whan the Campany has a present lagal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events and it is probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic benafits will be requirad to setthe the
ohbligation and a raliable estimate of the obligation can ba mada. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect current best estimatea.
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2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Aszets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed tor impairmant at each statement of financial position date or
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recowerable, An
impairment loss is recognized for the amount for which assets carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount,
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
{cash-generating units). Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date, Reversals of the impairment Iosses are resiricted to the extent that the assel's
carrying amount does not excead the carrying amount that would have been detarmined, naet of depreciation or
amortization, if impairment losses had not been recognized. An impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss is
recognized in the statemeant of prafit or loss,

2.10 Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company has adopted IFRS 15 from 01 July 2018, The standard provides a single comprehensive madeal for
revenue recognition, The core principle of the standard is that an entity shall recognize revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services o cuslomers al an amount that reflects the consideration o which the antity
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services, The standard introduced & new contract-based
revenue recognition model with a measurement approach that is based on an allocation of the transaction price.
This is described further in the accounting policias below, Credil risk is presented separalely as an expense ralher
than adjusted against revenue, Contracts with customers are presented as a contract liability, a contract asset, or &
recaivable, depanding on the ralationship betwaan the Company's peformanca and the customar's paymant. These
are further elaborated hersunder;

I} Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company is expected to be entitied
in exchange for transferring goods or services o a cuslomer. For each contract with a customer, the Company.
identifies the contract with a customer; identifies the performance obligations in the contract; determines the
transaction price which takes info sccount estimates of variable consideration and the time value of money;
allocates the transaction price 1o the separate performance obligations on he basis of the relative stand-alane
gelling price of each distinet good or service lo be delivered, and racognizas revanue when or as each performance
obligation is satisfied in a manner that depicts the transfar to the customer of the goods or services promised.

YWariabla consideration within the transaction price, if any, reflects concessions provided to tha customer such as
discounts, rebates and refunds, any potential bonuses receivable from the customer and any other contingent
events. Such estimates are determined using either the "expected value' or 'most likely amount method. The
measurament of variable consideration is subject o a constraining principle whereby revenue will only be
recognized to the exent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenus
recognized will not occur. The measuremant constraint continues until the uncertainty associated with the variabla
consideration is subsequently resolved. Amounis received that are subject to the constraining principle are initialhy
recognized as deferred revenue in the form of a separate refund liability,

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sake of goods is recognized at the point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods,
which is generally at the time of delivery. Related Government grant is recognized when there is reasonable
assurance that Company will comply with the conditions attached to it and grant will be recaivad.

Rendering of services
Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognized over time as the services are rendered based on sither 8
fixed price or an hourly rate.

Interest

Interast income is recognized as interast accruas using the effactive interest method. This is a method of calculating
the amaortized cost of & financial assel and allocating the interest income aver the relevant period using the affactive
interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipis through the expected life of the
financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial assat.
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Other revenua
Other revenug is recognised when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established.

I} Contract assets
Confract assels arise when the Company performs its performance abligations by transferring goods to a customer
before the customer pays its consideration or before payment is due. Contract assets are treated as financial assets
for impairment purposes,
Iy Right of return assets
Right of returm assets represents the right to recover Inventory sold to customears and Is basad an an estimate of
customers who may exercise their right to retum the goods and claim a refund. Such rights are measured at the
value at which tha inventary was praviously carried prior to sale, less expected recovery costs and any impairment.
i¥) Contract liabilities
Confract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer for which the Company has
receivad consideration from the customer. If 8 customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods, a
contract liability is recognized when the paymeant is made. Contract liabiliies are recognized as revenua when tha
Company performs its performance obligations under the contract.
Impacts of adoption of IFRS 15 on these financial statements as on 01 July 2018
Foliowing adjustments werg made to the amounts recognized in the financial statements at 01 July 2018:

Statement of financial position 30 June 2018 01 July 2018

Reported | “justment Restated
=—eeee Rupees in Thousand —-—-—

Current assets

Stock in frade 5810,871 50,928 5,861,799

Trade debts 9,276,084 {58,508) 9,217 576

Current liabilities

Trade and ather payables 2,676, 834 (379) 2 676,455

Equity

Reszerves 6,945 640 (7,201) 6,938 439

211 Share capital
Ordinary and preference shares are classified as equity.

2.12 IFRS 9 'Financial instruments’

The Company has adopted |[FRS 9 “Financial Instruments” from 01 July 2018, The standard introduced new
clazsification and measurement models for financial assets. A financial assat shall ba measurad at amartized cost if
it is held within & business model whose objective 15 to hold assels in order to collect contractual cash flows which
arise on specified dates and that are solely principal and interest. A debt instrument shall be measured at fair value
through ather comprehansive income if it is held within a business model whose objective is to both hold assets in
omder to collect contractual cash flows which arise on spaecified dates that are solely principal and interest as well as
selling the asset on the basis of ils fair value. All other financial assels are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss unless the Company makes an irrevocable alection on initial recognition to prasent gains and
losses on equity instruments in other comprehensive income. Despite these requirements, a financial asset may be
irrevocably designated as measured at fair value through profit or loss to reduce the effect of, or eliminate, an
accounting mismatch. For financial liabilities designatad at fair value through profit or loss, the standard requires the
porfion of the change in fair value that relates to the Company's own credit risk to be presented in other
comprehensive income (unless it would create an accounting mismatch). New simpler hedge accounting
raguirements are intended to more clasely align the accounting treatment with the risk management activities of the
Company. New impairment requirements use an ‘Expected Credit Loss' ('ECL') model to recognize an allowance.
Impairment is measured using a 12-month ECL method unless the credit risk on a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition in which case the lifetime ECL mathod is adopted, For receivables, a
simplified approach 1o measure expected credit losses using a lifetime expected loss allowance is available.
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The Company has adopted IFRS 8 without restating the prior year results. Key changes in accounting policies
resulting from application of IFRS 9 are as lollows:

i) Recognition of financial instruments

The Company initially recognizes financial assets on the date when they are originaled. Financial liabilities are
initially recognized on the trade date when the entity becomes a pary 1o the contractual provisions of the
imatnament.

il) Classification and measurement of financial Instruments
IFRS 8 largely retains the exisling requirements in 1AS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurament”
for tha classification and measuremeant of financial liabilities, Howaver, it replaces the pravious 1AS 38 categanies for
financial assels i.a. keans and receivablas, Fair Value Through Profil or Loss (FVTPL), avallable for sate and held 1o
maturity with the categories such as amorized cost, FVTPL and Fair Value Through Other Comprahensive Income
IFVTOCI),

Investments and other financial assots

a) Classification
From 01 July 2018, tha Company classifies its financial asaols at amortized cost,

Tha classification depands on tha Company's business model for managing the financial assels and the contrectual
terms of tho cash flows.

For investmants in dabt instruments. this will dapand on tha business model in which tha invastmant I8 hald, Tha
Company reclassifies debl instruments when and only when its business model for managing those assels
changas,

b} Measuremant

Al initial rocognition, the Company maasuras a financlal assel at its fair value plus transaction costs thal are diroctly
attributable to the acguisition of the financial assest,

Financial assets with embedded dervatives are conslderad in thalr antiraty when detarmining whether thelr cash
flows are solaly payment of principal and interast,

Debt instrument

Subsaguant measuramant of dabt instruments depands on the Companys businass modal for managing the assot
and the cash flow characleristics of the assel, The Company classifes its dabl instruments Inte following
measurement category;

Amaortized cost
Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows whare those cash flows represant solaly
payments of principal and Interest are measured al amartized cost. Interast incoma from these financial assels s
included in other incoma using the effective interast rate method. Any gain or loss arsing on de-racognition s
racognizad directly in prafit or loss and presented in alher Incoma / (othaer axpensas ) together with Toreign axchange
gains and losses.

Financial liabilitios

Classification and measurement
The adoption of IFRS 9 did not have a signibcant effect on the Company's accounting policies related to hnancial
liabilities, and therefona there s ne change in the classification and measurement of linancial labilltes.

iii) Impairment of financial assets

From 01 July 2018, the Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses assoclated with
its debt instruments camied at amortized cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
bean a significant increase in cradit nak.

Faor trade debts and other receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which
requires axpeacted |ifetima losses fo be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables,
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iv) De-recognition
Financial assets
The Company de-recognizes a financial assel when the contractual rights lo the cash flows from the assel expire, or
it transfars the rights 10 mcaive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assel are transferred, or it neither ranglers nor retains substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership and doas not retain contral over the transferred asset, Any inferes! in such de-
recognized financial assels thal is created or retained by the Company is recognized as a separale asset or liability,

Financial liabilities
Tha Company de-recognizes a financial liability (or a part of financial Hability) from its statement of financial position
whian the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancedled or expired,

V) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assels and financial Habilites are sel off and the nel amount I8 reported in the financial statements whan
thera is a legal enforceable right 1o sat off and the Company intends aither to seltle on a net basis o lo realize the
assals and 1o saltle the llabilities simullansously.

vi) Impacts of adoption of IFRS 9 on these financial statements as on 01 July 2018
On 01 July 2018, tha Company's management has assossed which business modals apply 1o the financial assats
held by thé Company at the date of inilial application of IFRS 8 (01 July 2018) and has classified s financial
instrumonts inlo appropristo IFRS 9 categories. The main affects resulting from this reclassification ara as follows,

Financial assets - (01 July 2018)

Loans and Amortized
recoivables cost
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Opening balance (bafore reclassification) 10,113,518
Adjustments due to adoption of IFRS 8;
Adjustment on adoption of IFRS 9 by reclassifying financial instruments
designated as "Loans and Receivables’ to ‘Amortized Cost! (10,113.516) 10,113,516
Recognition of expecled credit losses on trade debls - 2,293
Opening balance (afier reclassification) - 10.111.223
—_— —_—
Tha impact of these changes on the Company’s reserves and aquily is as follows:
Rosorves and aquity - (01 July 2018) unmnﬂ ::Im “w
profit equ
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Opening balance (before classification) 6,231,140 10,335 873
Adjustmant on adoption of IFRS 9 dua to recognition of
expectad life Uime credil losses on trade debis. (2.293) (2,203)
Opening balance (after reclassification) 6,220,847 10,333,580

213 Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are initlally recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amoriized cosl using the
effective interest method, less any allowance for expeciad credit losses. Trade recelvables ganerally do not include
amounis ovardue by 365 days.

Tha Company has applied the simplified approach o maasure expecied credil lossas, which usas a lifalime
expacied loss allowance. Actual credil loss expenence aver past years is usad lo base the calculation of axpected
cradit loss.

Other recaivables ame recognized at amortized cosl, less any allowance lor expected credil losses,

2.14 Borrowings
Bormowings are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently stated at amartized cost. Any diffarence
betivesn the proceeds and the redemphbon value is recognized in the statement of profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.
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2.15 Trade and other payables
Liabilities for irade and other amounts payable are initially recognized at fair value, which is normally the transaction
casl.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at banks on cumrent, saving and deposit accounts and
other short term highty liguid instruments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject o insignificant risk of changes in values

2.17 Dividend and transfer of reserves
Dividend to the sharehclders is recognized in the period in which it is declared and other appropriations are
recognized in the period in which these are approved by the board of direciors.

2.18 Segment reporting

Operaling segments are reported in a manner consistant with the intemal reporting structiure. Managemeant monitors
the: operating results of its segments separately for the purpose of making decisions regarding resource allocation
and performance assessment.

Segment resulls thal are reported to management include ilems directly attibulable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basks. Those income, expensas, assels, liabilities and other balances which
cannot ba aflocated to a particular segment on a reasonable basis are reported as unallocated.

The Company has three reportable operating segments: i) Spinning (Producing different qualities of yam), ii)
Knitting (Producing knitted fabric from yarn), ili) Procassing and Garmments (Processing of greige fabric for
production of dyed and white fabric and manufacturing of variety of garments from processed fabric).

Transactions among the operating segments are recorded at amm's length prices using admissible valuation
methods. Inter segment sales and purchases are eliminated from the total.

2.19 Eamings per share
The Company prasants basic and diluted Eamings per Share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by dividing profit
attributable to shareholders af the Company by the wealghtad average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting profit attributable to shareholders and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares cutstanding with the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.20 Contingent assets

Contingent assets are disclosed when the Company has a possible asset that anses from past events and whose
exstence will only be confirmed by the ococurrence or non-ocourrence of one or more uncertain future events naot
wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are not recognized unfil their realization becomes
certain.
221 Contingent liabilities

Contingent iability is disclosed whan the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain fulure events not
wholly within the controd of the Company. Contingent liabilities are not recognized, only disclosed, unless the
possibility of a fulure outfliow of resources is considerad remote. In the evenl thal the outflow of resources
associated with a contingent liability is assessed as probable, and if the size of the outflow can be reliably
estimated, a provision is recognized in the financial statements.

3. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL

2019 2018 2018 2018
(MUMBER OF SHARES) (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
67 500 000 67 500 000 Ordinary =hares of Rupeses 10 each
fully paid in cash 675,000 675,000
31 166 668 31 166 668 Cumulative preference sharas (non-
voling) of Rupees 10 each fully paid in
cash (Mote 3.1) 311,666 311.666
OB BEB BEE 08 BEG BEB 056, 666 S86_BGE

D



mtm

Maseed Teais Wl LK

31 The Company issued cumulative preference shares as at 30 June 2005, which are listed on Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited, to finance the working capital requirements and fixed capital expenditure.

Terms of redemption

a) Conversion option

Preference shareholders have the oplion 1o serve a notica 1o the Company 1o converl one third of the preferance
shares along with accumulated dividend into ordinary shares of the Company afier the expiry of four yvears from the
date of issuance in any conversion year &t a discount of 15 parcent to immediately preceding 30 calendar days'
average market value. Upon receiving the conversion notice, the Company will have the option to repay the
praferance shares along with the accumulated dividend for which conversion notica has bean issued within one
month of receiving thereof or issue ordinary shares o preference shareholders.

b) Call option

The Company has the oplion to redeem the preference shares after four years of the issuance in part in multiples of
10 percent upts 100 percent from the preference shareholdars, Tha call price would ba Rupaes 10 per share plus
the entire accumulated preference share dividend, if any.

c) Rate of dividend

The preference dividend is payable al the average rate of six months KIBOR plus 2 percent per annum on
cumulative basis. According to the terms of issuance, dividend to ordinary shareholders could only be paid after the
payment of preference dividand to preference sharehalders.

d) Sinking fund reserve

The Company has created a sinking fund reserve (capital redemption reserve fund) from the profits of the Company
to make payments against any call option. The Company has built-up this sinking fund reserve to ensure that at the
end of the fourth year from the issuance date, the resarve is equal to one third of the total amount of preference
shares, This reserve account will subsequently be replenished 1o ensure thal one third of the oulstanding
preference shares amount is available in the reserve account.

3.2 17 356 833 ordinary shares (2018: 17 396 833) of the Company are held by Shanghai Challenge Textile Company
Limited - associated company.
2019 2018
{ RUPEES IN THOUSAND )
4. CAPITAL RESERVES

Share premium (Mote 4.1) 1.375.000 1,375,000
Capital redemption resarve fund (Note £.2) 128,333 128,333
Surplus on revaluation of freehold land a00.234 GO0 234

2403 567 2.403,567

4.1 This reserve can bea ulilized by the Company anly for the purpases spacified in section 81 aof the Companies Act, 2017,
4.2 The Company has created this resenve from its profits fo make payments againsi any call oplion of preference shares.
5. REVENUE RESERVES

General 714,500 714,500
Unappropriated profit 7,393,006 6.231.141
B, 107 506 f,545 641

E. LONG TERM FINAMCING
From banking companies - secured

Long term loans (Note 6.1) 5,480 6859 5,980,246
Diminishing musharika (Note 5.2) 468,750 125,000
5958438 6,105,246
Less: Cument portion shown under current liabilities (Note 12) 1,658,955 1,454 675
4,298 464 4, 650,568
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6.1 Long term koans

focthelen INTEREST
LENDER 2019 2018 || INTEREST HWUMBER OF INSTALLMENTS PAYABLE SECURITY
PER ANMLIM
[RUFEES B THOUSAND)
Medium Term Loan / Demand Finances | Long Term Finances for Export Criented Projects:
MECE Sank Limilzd 263,09 IWenth  This Bolty was oowpelaly rapaid o 10 Ouaredy  Firsl charga on specfic machnery
KBOR+1.50% Decembar 2278 by Matonal Bark of Raiesan on
accognt of the Company
Hational Bari of Pakistan 451,713 IMenth  This fsclly wes momgielsy repad on 26 Cuariedy  Firsl chargs on specfic machnery
KBOR+1.50 Novemier 20408
Halioral Bank of Pakistan 2125000 2,500,000 I Menth Twenty cuarery insl#imenis slang from 22 Cluadedy  Sst jnt par pessu charpe over faad gesele
EBORH.O00:  Sepemoer 2015 and anding on 22 June 2003 of #ie Company and pemoral guaranies of
Chiel Execulre Difcer o 18 Compam
Maliors Berk of Pakistzn 301,680 IMonin  Twmnty quarery insladments slatng from 10 Ouarteny  First joint pen pascu chams over fimd
KBORHS0  March 2019 an anding on 1l December 3023 azsets of Fe Company
Standar Charinmd Bank 600,000  BOONM fi Wonin Tan ecusl seml grusl retalrects starting foem Semi Joick pan passu crangs o finnd assals of
|Pakgian) Limiled KBOR+25% 31 July 2017 and anding on 31 January 2022 Annualy e Comaany
Eamba Bank Limited 238,378 375,00 fibonth  Swieen querkerly msmlinents shrting from 30 Ouadedy  Pan paseu changs on fixed assets
KBOR+H .5 Sepmmbar 2046 and ending on 30 Jung 200
Unised Berk Limiiad 48727 B2ATE §00%  Smmen ey nstalmons satng mm 2 Quaredy  First charga on specfic machnary
Febiruary 20T and ending on 28 Moversher 2023
IUnited Berk Limitad AN T 28,14 5.00%% Eiipen guaterly nslaimants sarng fmm 31 Quadedy  Firsl charga on specihiz machnery
Decgmber 24T and ending or 30 Sestombor 2121
Uinfed Benk Limitad 15,350 16,383 5.00% Sixleen quarkerly instaliments siading fom 11 Cuaredy  Firsl charga on specifiz machnery
May 2019 and ending or 11 Fednuary 200
IUnited Bark Limitad 4847 5170 5.00% Sixieen quasterty insialiments siating rom 30 Cuardedy  Firsl charge on specific machnery
March 2012 and gnding on 30 Degersher 2033
LUinitad Bark Limitad 13,126 13,125 5.00% Sideen querierty insaliments staing from 25 Cuadedy  Firsl charge on speafic machnery
July 2018 aind ending an 25 Apil 2023
LUinited Bark Limiiad 3528 526 500 Sideen qunierty necalimams staing fom 27 Cuadedy  Firsl charge on speafic machnery
A 2013 and endieg on 27 Mey 2023
Liniad Bark Limited T1E e §00%  Sooeen quarterly nssiimems staming om 26 Cugrdedy  First charge on spechic machnery
Peus! 2019 and erdicg o 26 Mey 2023
Unied Bark Limiked .25 2,237 500%  Swwen quarterly mealimans sating rom 05 Cuseny  First change on specfic machnery
Septemoer 2072 and ewding on 05 June 2823
ILinRed Bank Limited a7 4t 37 041 5008 Sodesn quarierty meszlimams siarting fom 18 Ouadedy  Firsl charge on apedalis machnery
Septemzer 2079 and eoding on 12 Jane 2023
Liniec Bank Limited TAM TH71 5.008% Sivienn quarierly msalimants stating om 20 Duadedy  Firsl charge on specific machnery
Sepmmagr 2049 and aning on 20 June 2023
Unied Bark Limited 58 66 5.00% Siienn quarierly insaliments. starting from 18 Cuzneny  First charge on specfic machnery
Cracber 2015 and endng on 18 July 2033
LUnis=d Bark Limitad 27,750 5.00% Siveen quarierty insaliments sarting fom 28 Ousedy  Firsl charga on speciic machnery
Phovemier 2018 and encing on 28 August 2023
ILinit=d Berk Limitad 6787 5.00% Sixieen quarlerly instaliments siarting fom 18 Cuadedy  Firsl charga on speciic machnery
January 2020 and ending on 10 October 2037
Linfied Bark Limilad 1,850 5.00% Sivieen quarlerky ingaliments stading fom 0B Cuadery  Firsl charga on specific machnary
arch 200 and ending oo 08 tanuery 2009
MCB Bank Limilad G0TH 5.00% This faclly wes m=peiel repeid o 10 Cuaredy  Firsl changa on specihic machnary
December 2010 by Mabosal Bark of Pakstan o
acocunl of te Compary
MCE Bark Limilad 2430 500%  Th: fcly we omwpeel epid o 0 Quaredy  Firsl charga on specifiz machinery
Dacpmber 2310 by Natmmal Bark of Palastan or
acecunt o tha Compary
MECE Sank Limited Hal 5.00% Ths Godly was owpeichy repeid o 10 Ouadedy  Firsl charga on specific machinery
Decrmber 2018 by Matomal Bark of Pakstan or
account o the Compary
MCH Bark Lirmiled 40,835 5.00% This lecliy was owpeiely mpsid o 10 Ousdedy  Firsl charge on spechic machnery
Detambar 2096 by Malonal Bark of Paketsn or
account o the Compery
MCE Bark Limiled 3478 .00 This lechly wae compiedaly repsid om0 Cladedy  Firsl change on 2pecilic machinery
December 2096 by Malosal Bark ol Peksan o
seccunl o the Conmpary
MCB Eark Limiled 30634 200 This Pecfly wae cowpipiely mpsid 0% 10 Quadedy  Firsl chargs on speclic machinery
Cecamber 2096 Iy Mahoaal Bark ol Pakistan o
sccounl o7 e Compery
Thar Bank of Punjat 1660 2,40 5.00% Severrieen quarterly inglsiments slatng from Cuestedy  Firsl charge on spesific machnary
12 July A1 7 and anding on 12 Aprd 202
Tha Bank of Punjao 1,72 2587 5.00% Sewvenigen quarherty rstalimenls sladng from Cuacedy  Firsl charga on spechic machnery
05 Auguest 2017 and nding on 15 May 2021
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nean INTEREST
LENDER 2018 218 INTEREST NUMEBER OF INSTALLMENTS PAYABLE SECURITY
PFER AHNUM
(AUFEEE IH THOUSAKD)

T Bark of Pungb 180 2857 500 Savenipen mstalimants gamng Yom Cuamerly  Firsd charce on spacific machinery
11 Auguet 2047 and ending an 11 May 204

The Bark of Punib 153 5508 S0 Seveniesn quareny instalimeny s=nind fom Quarerly  First charge on spadfic machinery
11 Aaguesd 2T el enliogg e 11 Magy 2084

T Bark of Pungb 1,258 1,587 500 Sevemaen guariary neiEimants starting om 08 Cuanerly  Firet charge on spsatic machinery
Sapiember 2007 and ending on 0 Jure X3

Tz Bark of Puniab TS 1.1 S00% Sigeen quaned) metabrents clarding from 28 Cuanerty  First charge on spectic machinery
Novemtad 2007 and ending on 30 Doloter 2021

The Bank of Punjsh 1,138 155 5.00% Sgremn cuamety nslameni: sanng fom 27 Quanerly  Frsl curge on seclic rachrey
Mowbmbar Z117 anc andng on OF kivamoer AC

Tha Bami of Punjab 1441 28 500 Egitesn quaredy nslliments stading from 28 Cluarery  Frst charge on spsciic machinery
Nowembet 2017 and snding on 06 Novemier 261

Thie Bank of Punjat B0 11,256 500% Eghmmn cuarety inslalmenis slating from 28 Quarerly  Firsl charge on speclc machinery
Mmeimoar AT ancandeg on W kovamoa: AL

Tha Bank of Punjab g 4547 S00% Sewnieen Quadsry nelaiments sising rom 28 Cuanerty  Firel charge on soeciic machinary
Mowermites 2117 and snding on 06 Decamber 2E1

The Barie of Punjah il ] HEES 5.00% Egrmen quaredy inslaliments starting from M8 Cuererly  Frel charge on saaafic pechinery
Nowamtar 2117 and endirg on 14 Dacamine AL

The Barkk of Punjab 15,0 ke 300 Eqrtteen quaredy insidiments eaiing fom 20 Cuarerly  Frsl charge on speciic machinery
Mirwertiber 2017 ancherdiing on 20 January 2023

The Bank of Punjs 6288 EEas 500%  Nneses guaney nslaments stating fom 28 Cusnerly  First charge on speclic machinery
Nowember 2117 and ending on 27 Febnary AG2

The Barik of Punjab k-l LiaEr S00% Eigrisen quanedy insldmens elarting from 28 Quarerly  Frsl cnarge on spediic machinery
Mowermber 2007 ard anding on I7 February 2E2

The Bark of Punjab 1623 21,514 5005 Hinelesn quarery instalrents siaring fom 10 Quarterly  Firsl charge on spedic machinery
Faitnaary ZE and endng on 10 Augus! 2022

The Banie of Punjab 128414 185103 5.00% Twenty quarierly instalmants sharing fom 14 Quanerdly  Fretcharge on soadic machinery
Ktarch 300 and erding on 14 Demamser A7

Tha Bari of Funjab 2303 ;I 5.00% Tweznty quarerly instalments stamng fom 21 Cuenerly  First charge on soeciic machinery
dspril 20118 and mnding an 21 Janaary 2

Tha Bani of Punjab 4,55 53928 500% Tweznty quarierly instialments staning fom 12 CQusnerly  Firsl charge on soeciic machinery
By 2118 and erdi on 12 February 20123

Tha Bami of Punjab 2 e 41 758 0% Twenly querkesrly instaiiments staring Fom 08 Cuanerty  First charge on spadfic machinery
Juns 3016 and ending on 0F March 2023

Azigari Bank Limied 12524 16,355 5.00% Sixieen garery inslalments sieing Fom 01 Quanerly  Frsl coarge on spaciic machinery
Oicinbar 2017 and &nding on 01 July 2021

Hgkari Bank Limied 10.235 1L5M 500 Sicesn quaiery ralsivadls sling bom 04 Camerly Frsl charge on spediic machinery
Drecemizer 2017 and ending on (= Sepramber 2021

Bakan Bank Limied aazr 124338 B00% Sirieon quortery irstalrenls soring fom 81 Quanedy  First charge on spedic machinery
Javary 2018 and ending on i Hovember 2021

Hskari Bank Limied 208m 529 500 Steken quenerly retairadls slecing Pom 01 Cuanerty  Firel carge on spedfic machinery
Fabruary 2018 and ending on O Moamies J0I1

Azkan Bank Limped F2,150 98355 50 Slaeen guanedy inslalmenis sisrding Fom 10 Qusnerly  Frst charge on spadfic machinery
iepril 2118 and snding an 10 January 2027

HAshari Bank Limied 1700 ZETS 500% Gixmen quarery inslalments gizing fom 18 Quaderly  Firsl carge on sseclic machinery
“ugusl 2078 ang ending on 15 May 2022

Azian Bank Limned 2,240 248 S00% Sinteen guaredy inslalments sieing Fom 15 Quanerly  Frsl cnarge on spaciic machinary
Seplerber 2018 and ending on 15 Juss 2022

Kalari Bank Limied 3EE 5,085 S00% Sieman guanery instalments siaing fom 20 Quarerly  First cvarge on soecic machinery
Saplerber 2018 and anding on 20 Juse 2022

Azkan Bank Limied 13977 14,8308 500% Sieen gquaredy inslalmenls siwing Fom 17 Quanerly  Frsl charge on speciic machinery
Apiil 2019 and snding an 17 January 223

Asiari Bank Limied 50075 5075 500% Stapen guaredy inslalments giadng Fom 15 Quanerty  Firsl charge on spedic machinery
July 200 and ending on 13 Apel 2023

Asiari Bank Limiod 132 1y 5005 Sixeen guanery inslalmenis slaring Fom 11 Cuarerly  Firs charge on spedfic machinery
Saplerber 2018 and endng on 11 Juse 2023

Asiari Bank Limied £.485 G455 500% Sixtaan quaredy instalments staring fom 2F Cuaderly  Frel coarge on soedfic machinery
Seplerher 201% and andng on 27 Juse 2025

Azian Bank Limned 2558 2558 500 Sideen guanedy inslalmenis sisdng Fom 22 Quarerly  Frsl charge on spaciic machinery
Seplerber 2018 and endng on 22 Juse 2023

Askari Bank Limbed 15,803 500%  Fgvemn gecedy neldimants sarng fom 26 Cuanerly  Frrsl charge on sosclic machiery
dagus 3003 aved ending o 3 Nevom ber 203

Askaari Bank Limiexd 17,28 500%  Slkwen garery inplalments staring fom 31 Cuanerly  Firsl crge on saadic rachivey
Juna 04 and anding on & March 2004

Aslgari Bank Limied 33087 500% Sivmen quanery insalments siwring fom 20 Quamerly  Firsl cherge on specfic machinery

June H1 X and sading nn 21 March 3F8
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e INTEREST
LEMDER 209 2018 INTEREST NUMEER OF INSTALLMENTS PATABLE SECURITY
| PER AMNUM
(RUPEES IN THOUSAKD}

Watignal Bank of Pakistan R ] a0 Twenly cuarery inslalmenis slaing o 28 Quaredy  First charga an spedfic machinaery
Tdard 2018 and ending on 28 Deveraber 2022

Katianal Bank af Pakistan 18,701 5656 G0N Twenty quarery inslalments slaring ¥om 02 Ouaredy  Firsl charge an spedfic madhinery
&pvil 2013 and ending oo 0B Januarny 2023

Nalianal Bank af Pakslan 14 80S RTEd S00% Twanty gamery Inslaiments stamng hoe 2 Cuaderdy  First charge an Spedhic machingry
apew 2018 and ending o0 2 Januany 2023

Kalinnal Bank af Pakelan 1,000 30,086 S00% Twanty quarery Inslaiments staring fom 30 Ouadedy  First charge an sped iz machinery
April 212 and anding am 20 Jaruary 7003

Kalianal Bank al Pakilan 10EG 134T0 S00% Twenty puartsry instaiments staring oo 07 Ouadedy  First charga on spedfic machinery
dirs 201E and ending an 01 March 2023

Katianal Bank af Pekiatan S0 Ty S00% Twenty guartcry instalments starting fom 12 Cuanedy  First charga on sped fic machinary
Jure 2118 and ending an 12 Manch 2123

kahanal Bank of Peketan 8310 t1 668 500 Twenty guartery inslalmenls slaring ¥oey 20 Quartedy  Fisst charge on spedfic machneny
Jire 2118 and ending an 20 March 7023

Metianal Bank of Pekistan 26162 45 B0 S00% Twenly quartery imilalmenls alaniy o 28 Quaredy  Frst charge an spedfc machmery
Jure 2018 and ending an 26 Manch 2023

Iztional Bank of Fakiskan A35T9 B0 5.00% Twanty quarery instalmenis slaring from 16 Cuariesty  Frst chame on speciic mecinery
Pusgust 2018 e eeding on 15 May 2023

Pualinnal Bank of Pakistan 15125 18 906 5.00% Twenty quarery Insiaiments slaring from 28 Cuarlesty  First charge on spechic machingry
Aunust 2378 andd anding on 24 May 2021

Natianal Basix of Pakjskan 19,042 36 BAZ 5.00% Twanty cuaredy instaimenis siartng fmm 25 Quarkedy  Firabchange an spedfic machineny
Agnil 2012 and ending an 25 Jaruary 2023

Watianal Bani of Pakistan JES 43,17 5.00% Twenty cuarery insdimens alartng from 03 Quariardy  Firstcfrge on spechic madsineny
Jury BB and ending on 03 Api 2023

Wationd Banw of Pakistan 1057 13,210 5.00% Twenty quaredy ingalmenls slerbng fom 07 Quarieety  Firstcharge on spedfic machinany
Pusguel 2098 s eeeding on O May 2023

Maliona Basis of Pakiskan 10485 13110 5.00% Twanty ceargry instalments startng fom 23 Quarkesty  Firstoharge on speafic machinany
Pusgust 207R 3 ending on 29 May 025

Matianal Rasia of Pakistan B30 7,534 5.00% Twenty cusrery Insaiments slaring from 06 Ouarledy st chenge on sperilie madinerny
Saptemhar 2018 and andng cn 06 June 2023

Watianal Bani of Pakiskan 5,955 7443 5.00% Twenty cuarery instalmenls slsring om 14 Quarery  Firstcharge on spadhc machingsy
Seplember 2278 ard anding on 14 June 2023

Natianal Ban of Pakistzn 13577 18,873 5.00% Twenty cuaredy instaimenls staring frem 03 Quariery  Frstcharge on spadfic machinany
Crtnber 201 B @ euding an 03 July 2033

Natiand Bas ol Pakiskan TZ 140 E00% Ivanly quasady naialments stadng Fom OF Quariety  Firstcharge an spedhic machinesy
Cecember 2010 and endirg on 05 Septamber 221

HWatianal Ban of Pakistan 65,755 5.00% Toerly guaters maldmets aiading kom 11 Quarierdy  Firsteharge on spechc machinery
Datambar 218 and ending on 11 Sediamzer 2123

Mational Ban« of Pakistan 7477 5.00% Twenly quadety wedslmenis siadng Fom 20 Quarefy  Firstchange on spedfc machinan
Febaary 2010 an: endicg on 21 MNovarbsr 2023

Wational Bani of Pakistan 3105 5.00% Twanly quadardy mstallments stasng fom O Quarerdy  Firstcharge on spedfic machinany
September 2098 ard ending on 19 June 2023

Matianal Bari ol Pakishn B112 RO0% Twanky qeaterly metalmeis siang fom 15 Cuarkedy  Firsbchengs on spedfic machinany
Dmcember X110 amd endirg on 15 Saplemtar A

Hatianal Haw of Pakistan terl i) 5.00% Twenly quatedy nstalmens siotng kom 20 Quariety  Firstcharga an spedfic machineny
Febears 2010 anc’ endieg on 21 Moverber N23

Matkanal Banis of Pakistan 185 - 5.00% Twenty cearedy instaimenis siarfng from 04 Quaredy  First charge on spedfic machinany
Cutnber 20 B and seading on 04 Juky 2023

Mational Basic ol Pakistan 2500 5.00% kenelean quarery instalments starting from 25 Quariery  First change an spedfic machinany
{ctbar 2318 and ending on 3% dpdl 2023

Natianal Baris of Pakiskan JnE 5.00% Twenty cuarery instalmenls staring rom 07 Cuarlesly  First cfargs on spedfic madhinesy
Decamber 2MEand encing on 7 Seplen e 203

Mational Ban of Pakistan 85 558 5.00% Twenty ouarery instalmenls staring rom 19 Quanary  Firstcharge on zpedfic machinany
[efarcs 2019 and ending o 19 December 2023

Matianal Bani of Pakiskan 4 440 5.00% binglesn quarery instalmants starting from 17 Quanerdy  Firstcharge on spedfic machinany
kcreemnber 2018 ord erding on 17 May 2023

Nattianal Banix of Pakisian 5173 . 5.00% kingieen quanery instalmants starting from 11 Duwarkedy  Firal cheens an spedlc machinany
Fatruary 2019 ard ancing on 11 Augusl 2023

Hatianal Ba-is of Pakistan 21 880 BO0%  Eigeen quarlery instaliments stading from 17 Quartorty  First charge an specilic machinery
Jasvuary 2010 sed e on 17 Aol 2023

Mational Bani of Pakistan BGET - B00% binzleen quarlady instalmens slading fom 17 Quariedy  Frstcherga on spedfic machinany
February 2070 and ending on 17 Augusl 2023

Hakib Netropoitan Bank 84,715 - 5.00% Sixmen quarary irstallTants starting from 12 Ouarierdy  Frstcherga on spedfic machinany

Limited gy M2 and endng on 14 Fabmary 2024

Haktin Metropaitan Bank 1B773 B.00% ciatesn quartaty inslallvems starting rom 14 Quarlesty  First cfengs on speahic machinesy

Limited Mgy J120 and eniding on 18 Febnuany 028
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RATE OF INTEREST
LENDER 2018 2018 INTEREST NUMEER OF INSTALLMENTS PAYABLE SECURITY
PFER ANNUM
{FUPEEE |H THOUSAKD)
Habib Metropoiian Bank 1100, 464 - 5.00% Twerdy quanerdy nsalments starming fom 28 Querledy  First charge on spectic machingry
Limitad My P00 and mnding on 38 Fatruary 2005
Fasbilr Metopollan Bani 7 ATH = & 00% Tworty quataty oeEimants slamng fom £2 Ouariedy  Frsl charge on specilio machnerg
Limisd Juni XET and Bnging on &2 Maxh A25
Habib Metropoltan Bank 28,512 - 500 Twerty quarery nsalments slating Fom 07 Cusriedy  First charge on speciic machinery
Limbad July 2720 and ending en 07 Apd 2025
Fakistan Kusal ireestment 55,334 - 500% Szaean quarierly installments siaring fom (3 Ouerdedy  Ranking charge ower present and faur o
Cormpany [Privade) Limied August 2030 and endng on 03 May 2024 assels and porsonal gueranime of Chinf
Eve st (Micet and some direciors of the Corpany
Pakigian Kuasil Freesiment 93878 - 5000 Saaean quarierdy inslalments sisrang fom 23 Oueriedy  Henking charge oeer present and falum e
Cormpany [Private) Lmpec At 2L and anding on 23 May X0 assqts and personal quaranma of Creef
Exegutre: OFicér and some deschs of e Sampamy
6.2 Diminishing Musharika:
g Mooerats /8,750 75,000 Base Twerity for menthly instalmenis stardng Tom Monlly  Frsl chame oo specfic machirery and
Ham+? 5% W May 201% and anding on 30 &prl 20H parsal quarame of soee dmcios
Orix; Moosraba 50,000 20000 Base Twerily b senlhly instalmenls sisng for Monthly  Firsl chamge cn spechc machivery and
Faled225%  26 Juy 2013 and ending on 25 Juss 2021 peranval guaraniss ol wor e dreccn
{Orix; Mooaraba 50,000 - Base Twerty four senthiy Intalmenls slaring Yo Monthly  Fisl chasge on spechic machicery and
qam+d W% 28 July 2020 and ending on 28 June 2022 peraoral quaraniss ol some drecicrs
Meszan Sank Lmiled 300,000 - 3 Morih Twerty quariery msalments stating fom 38 Cuerledy  Sisl squipsa chamge ever spacihic propsry
KIBOR+H 5 Jone 00 and anding on 58 Maxh J006
458,750 125000
2019 2018
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
T LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE
Future rentals and year during which they fall due are as unoer:
2019 - 15,750
2020 12,413 5924
2021 5407 -
2022 5,407 :
2023 2407 -
2024 8,652 -
37,286 22,674
Less: Financial charges 5,352 873
Present value of minimum lease rental payments 31.934 21.701
Less: Current partion shown under current liabilities (Mote 12) 10,233 14,885
21,701 6,816
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B

7.2

8.1

B.2

Tha value of minimum lease payments has bean discounted using implicit interest rate of 7.70 percent to 12.99
parcent per annum (2018: 7,60 percent 1o 8,50 parcent per annum). Balance rentals are payable in monthly and
quariery installments. In case of default in any payment, an additional charge at the rate of 0.1 percent per day
shall be paid. Taxes, repairs and insurance cosls are (o be borne by the Company, In case of termination of the
agreement, the Company shall pay entire amount of rentalz for unexpired period of lease agreement. Lease
agraament is renewable at the option of the lessor on such tlerms as may be agreed upon. Liabilities are
secured against deposits of Rupees 6.778 million (2018: Rupees 1.988 million) included in long term security
daposils and Rupees 1.988 million (2018: Rupees 3100 millon) included in short lerm deposits and

prepayments.

Minimum lease payments and their present values are regrouped as under:

Future minimum lease payments
Less; Un-amorized finance charge

Present value of future minimum lease payments

DEFERRED LIABILITY FOR GRATUITY

2018 2018
Mot later  |Later than one | Mot later | Later than one
than one year but not than one year but not
VEED [ater than frve year later than five
YEErE YEars
eemnreee{ RUPEES IN THOUSAND)-ssmemmem
12,413 24 8673 15,730 6,924
2180 3,172 BES 108
10,233 21,701 14,885 6,816
2018 2018

(RUPEES IN THOLUSAMND)

Crpening balance 724 353 600 886
Add:
Provision for the year (Note 8.1) 238,202 211,782
Remeasurement recognized in olher comprebansive incoma (Mole 8.2) 34,305 (18.821)
Closing Balance 947,860 802 847
Lass:
Payments made during the year (221,501) {70,8456)
Increase in current liability - net (6.103) (7.548)
(227 ,604) (78.494)
770,256 724,353
Provision for the year:
Current service cost 184,252 167,557
Interast cost 54,950 44 225
230002 — sti782
Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income
Actuarial gain from changes in financial assumptions (B,252) (2,039)
Experence adjustment 42 557 116,782)
34 305 {18.821)

@



B.3

8.4

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation as at 30 June is given below:

Present value of defined benefit cbligation as at 01 July
Current service cosl

Inlerest cosl

Benefits paid during the year

Increase in cument lability - net

Remeasurements:
Actuarial gain from changes in financial assumptions
Experience adjustment

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 30 June

Principal actuarial assumptions used

Discount rate for interest cost in profit or loss charge (per annum)
Discount rate for year end obligation (per annum)

Expected rate of increase in salary (per annum|

Average duration of the benefit (years)

Mortality rates

Withdrawal rale
Retirement assumption

Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions:

mtm
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2019 2018
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
724,353 609,886
184,252 167,557
54,950 44,225
(221,501) (70,946)
(6,103) (7.548)
(8,252) (2,039)
42 557 {16,782)
34,305 (18.821)
770.256 724 353
9.00% 7.75%
14.25% 9.00%
13.25% B.00%
B 8
SLIC 2001-05 SLIC 2001-05
s¢l back 1 year &6t back 1 year
Age based Age based
Age B0 Age G0

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation as al reporbng date to changes in the weighted pancipal assumption is;

Discount rate

Increase in assumplion (Rupees in thousand)

Dacrease in assumption {Rupeas in thousand)
Future salary increase

Increase in assumption {(Rupees in thousand)

Decrease in assumption (Rupees in thousand)

Expected Maturity Profile

1.00%
(54,004)
62,318

1.00%
60.208
(52.931)

Followings are the expected distribution and timing of benafit payments at year end:

Dascription

2018

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024 to 2028
2029 and onwards

®

133,154
148,415
150,886
147.669
TOT 04T
20,511,580

1.00%
151,469)
58,823
1.00%
57.613
(50,300

133 467
133,514
122,961
117 897
111,763
553,063

6,261,129
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B.7 Amounts for the current and previous four years:

[ 2019 | 2018 | 2017 | 2016 | 2015 |
Al T [RUPEES IN THOUSAND) =meeemssemasmsa e
Prasent value of defined benefit obligations 770,256 724,353 G08.886 566,816 431,923
Remeasurement arising on defined
benefit obligation 34,305  (18.821) (17.798) 58,426 {19.014)

The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption whila holding all other assumptions constant. In
practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumplions may be correlaled. When calculating
the sensitivity of the defined benefit plan to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value
of the defined benefit plan calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period)
has been applied as when calculating the gratuity liability recognized within the statement of financial pasition.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change comparad to
the previous year except for certain changes as given in Note 8.4,

B.8 The estimated expenses to be charged to the statement of profit or loss for the year ending on 30 June 2020
are Rupess 309,855 million,

8.9 Rizk associated with the scheme

Final salary risk

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we assumed, Since the
benefit is calculated on the final salary (which will closely reflect inflation and other macroeconomic factors), the
banefit amount increases as salary increases.

Damographic risks

Mortality risk - The risk that the actual modality experience s different then the assumed mortality. This effect is more
pranounced in schemas where the age and senvice distribution is on the higher side.

Withdrawal risk- The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed withdrawal probabiity, The
significance of the withdraw! risk varies with the age, service and the entitled benefits of the beneficiary.

2019 2018
(RUPEES IN THOUSAMND)
. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Craditors 2,548 741 1,362 914
Advances from customers 27,726 15,484
Accrued liabilities 1,198 602 1,192 B1B
Income tax deducted at scurce 17,581 12 9609
Sales tax deducted at source 47 208 23,843
Workers' profit participation fund (Mote 9.1) 48 327 G8,696
~ 3880182 — 2676834
9.1 Workers' Profit Participation Fund - -
Balance as at 01 July 8,696 10,675
Less: Adjustment on adoption of IFRS 15 3ra =
68,317 10,675
Add: Provision for the vear (Mote 29) 47.579 68,696
Intarast for the year (Mote 31) & 127 653
118,023 80,024
Less: Payments during the year B8, 595 11,328
Balance as at 30 June 40 327 BR.GO6

9.1.1 Interest is paid at prescribed rate under the Companies Profit (Workers' Participation) Act. 1968 on funds
utilized by the Company till the date of allocation to workers,

@
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10.

1

12,

13.
a)
i)

i}

iv)

b)
i)

i)

14.

2019 2018
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
ACCRUED MARK-UP
Leng berm financing 138,124 113,587
Liabkilities against assets subject to finance lease 130 256
Shaort term bomowings 118,370 77,915

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - SECURED

These represaent the finances obtained from banking companies which are secured by way of first, second and third
equitable mortgage on fixed asseis of the Company. first joint pari passu charge ovar current assats of the Company,
pledge and personal guaraniee of directors, Mark-up is paid at the rate ranging from 2.75% per annum to 15.62% per
annum (2018: 2.75% per annum to 9.43% per annum) during the year on the balances ouistanding. The sancticnad
credit facilities are Rupees 15,955 million (2018: Rupees 13,645 million).

CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long term financing (Mote 6) 1,658,955 1454 678
Lizgbilites against asseis subject to finance lease (Mole 7} 10,233 14,885
1,664 164 :

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

Guarantees of Rupees 259,995 million {2018: Rupees 244 995 million) are given by the banks of the Company to Sui
Mortharn Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL) against gas connections and Total Parco Pakistan Limited against fuel
cards.

The Company has challenged, before Lahore High Court, Lahore, the provisions of SRO 491(1 2016 dated 30 June
2014 issued under section B{1Kb) of the Sales Tax Act 1980 whereby through amendmeant in the earlier SRO
1125(1 12011 dated 31 December 2011, claim of input sales tax in respect of packing material has been disallowed.
Lahare High Court, Lahore has issued stay order in favour of the Company an 18 January 2017. Consequently, the
Company has accounted for input sales tax amounting o Rupees 151.862 million (2018; 151.862 million} paid on
such itams as receivable balance. The Company is confident on positive cutcomea of the appeal, on the advice of
legal counsel.

Provision for Gas Infrastruciure Development Cess (GIDC) and cast of supply charges thereen amounting o Rupees
30,880 million (2018: Rupees 9429 milian) and Rupaes 24.017 milllan (2018: Rupees 20.118 million) respactvely for
the pericd from Movember 2017 has not bean recognized in the books of account as the Company has obtained stay
orders from Lahaore High Court, Lahore on 15 Movember 2017 and from Islamabad High Court, Islamabad on 15
Decamber 2017. Post dated cheques amounting to Rupees 31,703 million (2013: Rupees 7.413 million) are issued to
SMNGPL against GIDC. Company s confident of favorable autcome aof the matlers, on tha advica of legal counseal.

Provision for Govemment subsidy amounting o Rupees B4 511 milien (2018: Rupees Mil) for the period from 01
March 2019 to 31 May 2012 on the gas bills issued by SNGPL has not been recognized in the books of account as
the Company has obtained stay crder form Lahore High Court, Lahare on 09 July 2019, subzequent to the reporting
date. Post dated cheques of the same amount mantioned above are issued to SNGPL against subsidy, Company is
confident of favorable cutcome of this matter, on the advice of legal counseal.

Commitments

Contracts for capital expenditure are amounting to Rupees 372,627 million (2018: Rupeaes 267.754 million) and other
than capital expandilura are of Rupeas 1,445.969 million (201 8: Rupaess 330 887 millian).

liarah (operating lease) commitments - Company as lessee

The Company obtained vehickes under [jarah {operating lease) agreement. The lease terms are three o five years.
The Company has given undertaking to purchasa the leased vehicles on agreed purchase price at maturity.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under ijarah (operating lease) are as follows:;

Mt later than one year 37 b2 27 883
Latar than ons year and not later than five years 93 502 4.3 200
151 444 71,064

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assals

-Owmed [ Nole 14.1 ) 10,492 805 9,282,929
-Leased ( Mole 14.1) 508627 50,848
Capital work-in-prograss (Nate 14.2) 10,295 685 580
11,162,527 10,028,337

@
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1412 Depreciation charge lor the year has been allocaled as follows
LR 2018
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Crarmad:
Cost of sales (Nowe 26) T50,028 626 854
Digtripusion cost (Mobe I7) 725 645
Administralive expenses [Nole 28) BE, 282 56,638
817,235 &84, 187
Leased,
Coost ol sales (Nohe 26) 3,182 5,599
Distribufion cost (Mobe 27) 1,110 1,050
Administrative expenses [Nole 28) 4,323 1,314
8615 7,863
825,850 692,150
14.1.3 Particulars of immovable properties (i.e. land and buildings) in the name of the Company are as follows:
Particulars Location Area w
Acres  Sq.ft
Appared Unit Sargodha Road, Faisalabad 2 56 175,936 *
Spinning, Knitfing and Dyeing Unils 32- KM, Sheikhupura Road, Faisalabad o540 1696636
Spinning Unit Satyanz Foad, Feisalabad 1.50 35114
Oifice New Civil Lines, Bilal Road, Faisalabas 0,235, 52484 *
Dffice Regency Plaza, Mall Road, Faisalabad = 3654 =

Covered area ai these locabons consists of mulli-siorey buildngs.
** Coversd area &1 this location consists of building only, becsuse of multi-siorey plazs.

1414 Forced sales value of freehold and as per the lslesi cerlification green by the independent valuer as al 30 June 2019 was
Rupes=s 1.242 890 millicn.

14.1.5 Detail of operating fixed assets, exceeding the book value of Rupees 500,000 disposed of during the year is as follows:

Accumal-) Net
ated Sale | Gain/ | Modeof
Description Cost Depreciad Book procesds| (loss) | dispossl Particulars of purchasers
ton valug
——{RUPEES IN THOUSAND j-——
Vehickes
Honda - Civie FD-14-T35 743 @Z T 1095 384 Company's Mr. Kamal Anjum, WAPDA Town,
Policy  Faisalabad. {Company's employse)
Toyols - Corclla Awo FD-15-TE 1268 133 1,138 1.064 {71} Megotiabon Mr. Muhammad Jaiar Naveed, Chak
Mo, 70008, Faisatabad
Toynta - Conglla FO-15-455 Te3 86 GE3 1,476 793 Compemy's MroAmir Saif, Johar Town, Lahone.

Policy  [Companys employesa)

Toyota - Land Cruser BW0TS 1168 237 931 4800 7869 Megolalon Mr Malik Muhammad Maleen, Seclor

E-7. Islemehad .
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20159 2018
{ RUPEES IN THOUSAND }
CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS

Buildings cn frechold land 24,082 242 047
Plant ang machinery 131,302 146,477
Advances againsl purchasa af land 65,688 55,688
Advances against purchase of machinary 389,223 240448

610,295 BA5 560

Borrowing cost of Rupess 5793 million (2018: Rupees 5 753 millon) was capitalized during the year using the capitalization
rate of 5.00% o 15.45% per annum (2018; 5.00% to 8.89% per annum),

LONG TERM ADVAMNCES
Considered good - secured

Executives (Note 15.1) 2,570 3,850
Other employees 546 274
326 4,124

Less : Current portion shawm under currant assats (MNote 20) 2.556 2.310
GED 1.814

Maximum aggregale balance due from executives at the end of any month during the year was Rupees 3675 milllon
{2018 Rupeas 12.050 millian).

Thiese include the interast free advances given 1o Company's executives and ciher employess recoverable in egual monthhy
nstallments and secured against the grafuity payable of these employees

The fair wvalue adjustment in accordance with the reguirements of [FRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measuramant’ arising in raspect of advances to employaes is not considerad matenal and henca not recognized.

LONG TERM INVESTMENT

Dbt instrument

At amortized cost
Salas Tax refund bands (Mote 16.1)

4 756 (2018: Nil) bonds of Rupess 100,000 each AL )
Add: Accruad interest (Note 30) 4B )
476,076 -

These represent investment in sales tax refund bonds issued by Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) Refund Setilement
Company Limited, under section 67A of Sales Tax Act, 1990 against sales tax refund payment orders issuad in favour of
the Company. These bonds have maturty period of 3 years and are carded at amortized cost using effective interest
rale of 9.14% per annum.

STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores (Note 17.1) 1,407,626 1,169.524
Sparae parts (Mote 17.2) 367 880 405,102
Loose tools 4,668 4,530

1,780,174 1,579,156

Thiese include stores in transit of Rupees 227 046 millicn (2018: Rupees 225761 millicn)
Thiess include spare pans intransit of Rupees 11.874 million (2018 Rupees 6.242 million)

50
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STOCK IN TRADE

Raw materials (Mote 18.1 and Note 18.2)
Work-in-process (Note 18.3)

Finished goods (Nate 18.4)
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2019 2018
[ RUPEES IN THOUSAND |
2,257,744 1,763,689
2,225,565 1,913,300

3,262 943
¥, 7d6, 252

These include stock in transit of Rupees 2.964 million (2018: 31.223 million)

2,113,882
3,810,871

These include stock of Rupees 182,368 million {2018: Rupees 105,381 million) sent to third parties for conversion,

These include stock of Rupees 331.315 million {2018: Rupees B4 775 million] sent to third parties for processing.

These indudea siock of Rupees 5.913 million (2018: Rupees 53.84%9 million) sent to third parties for processing.

Siock in trade includes stocks amounting 0 Rupees 105,630 million (2018 Rupees 129.016 millicn) valued at net

realizable value.

TRADE DEBTS

Conszidered good:

Secured (against letters of credit)
Ursecured:

Retated party (Note 19.1)

Others - against contract

Less: Allowance for expecied credit losses (Note 19.3)

As at 20 Juna 2019, trade debis due from the related parly were from Challenge Apparels Limited |

703,110

865,330
9204 575

609,020

10,065,905
10,773,015

64,708

TUl?ﬂEIL’-DB

B,638 3598

8,638,398

9,337 427
61,343

0,276,084

The mammunm aggregate amount due from the related party, Challienge Appareds Limited at the end of any month during the

year was Rupses BES 330 millon (2018 Rupees Nil).

Allowance for expected credit losses

Opening balance

Add:

Recognized as on 01 July 2018
Recognized during the year (Note 29)
Closing balance

LOANS AND ADVANCES
Conszidered good:
Empioyees - Intarast free:
Agains] exponsas

Agains! salary

Current portion of long term advances (Note 15)
Advances to suppliers

61,343

2,293
1,070
B4, TDE

17.795
33,723
51,518
2.556
A08.070
362 144

24,832

36,511
61,343

27,020

449,200

76,220

2310
02 242
380,772
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SHORT TERM DEPODSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Letters of credit

Prepaymants

Margin depasits

Security deposits including current portion
Income tax

OTHER RECEIVABLES
Considered good:
Sales tax refundable
Export rebate

Duty draww back claims
Others

SHORT TERM INVESTMENT

20148
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2018

{ RUPEES IN THOUSAND )

4,071
29,277
113,974
29,507

094,175

1,171,004

1,192,474
485,729
1,483,359
9,769

—_—

3,171,331

4,308

2,605
73,034
30,673

829,150
839,770

1,226,801
436,986
1,836,295
56, B2

3,536,704

These represent investrment in Term Finance Cartificates (TFCs) issued by Habib Bank Limited at the profit rale of

3 Month KIBOR+1.60% per annum (20718; Mil).
CASH AND EANK BALANCES

With banks :

On current accounts

On saving accaunts including US$ 61,387
(2018: LISE 61 279) (Mote 24.1)

Cash in hand

Rale of profit on saving accounts ranges from 2.40% to 10, 75% (2018 2.40% to 5.85%) per annum.

REVENLE

Local sales

Exporl sales

Wasle =salas

Knitting { dyeing income

Less: Sales tax

COST OF SALES

Raw materals consumead

Salaries, wages and other benefits

Staff retiremnent benefit

Fuel and power

Dyes and chamicals consumed

Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed
Packing materials and other charges
Cutsicde knitting, dyeing and CMT charges
Repair and maintenancea

Insurancea

Other factory overheads (Mole 26.1)
Depreciation - owned assets (Mot 14,1.2)
Depraciation - leased assets (Note 14.1.2)

225,553

152 G594
ara.24v

2,218
Jel.483

2,773,329
29,753,822
416.529
1,311,382
34,255,062
43 683
34,211,379

13,943,741
5,073,027
174,262
1,895,616
2,458,103
848,828
2,647,755
1,766,931
693,753
137,389
1,435,315
750,028
3,182

31,827,930

9,742

G008, 501
618.243

2137
520, 380

1,751,860
28,060,574
550, 224
530,003
30,901 661
59,502
30,842,159

11,253,192
4,901 3658
170,006
1,848,245
1,580,329
701 5682
2,747 M3
1,345,854
566,558
85,341
1.017.931
626, 854
5,589

26,660,752
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Waork-in-process:
Opening stock
Closing stock

Cost of goods manufactured
Finished goods:

Opening stock (Mote 26.2)
Closing stock

2018
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2018

[ RUPEES IN THOUSAND )

1,913,300

(2,225,565)

1,471.451

{312.268)
31,515,665

(1,913,300

2,164,810
13,262,843

(441.849)
26,218,903

2,885,834

(1,088,133

30417 532

(2,113,882)

771.862
26,950,855

This includes ijarah (operating lease) rentals amounting o Rupees 17.047 million (2018: Rupees 23,618 million) of

vehicles.

This includes tha impact of adjustmeant on adoplion of IFRS 15 amounting to Rupees 50,928 million.

DISTRIBUTION COST

Salaries and other banafils

Stafl retirarmant banefit

Commission to selling agents

Insurancs

Travelling and conveyances

Vehicles' running

Printing and stationary

Communication

Outward freight and distribution
Dapraciation - owned assels {MNola 14.1.2)
Depreciation - leased assets (Mote 14.1.2)

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits

Staff retiramant banefit

Rent, rates and taxes (Mote 28.1)
Travelling and conveyanca

Entartainment

Repair and maintenance

Vehides' running

Printing and stationary

Communication

Legal and professional

MNeowspapers and periodicals

Electricity and sui gas

Audilars” remunaration (Nota 28 2)
Subscription and fee

Adveriisement

Insuranca

Miscellaneous

Depraciation - owned assels (Mote 14.1.2)
Depreciation - leased assets (Mote 14.1.2)

147,843
16.234
1,001,855
10,048
41 649
9,975
580
27436
1,182,113
725
1,110
2,449,678
410,923
48706
29 808
23,267
9,968
4,454
21,232
7,768
17,619
2132
138
13.824
3,710
9,971
5,030
18,069
248

66, 482
4,323
697 674

117,820
8.551
985,583
8,180
36,004
8,914
554
21,645
874,425
645
1.060
2,063,381
a22,089
33,225
21.181
20,282
9706
3.034
19474
7.838
16,908
2237
72
12,781
2610

4 256
2.521
12,616
33
56,688
1.314
548,235
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This includes ijarah (operating lease) rentals amounting to Rupees 9.652 milion (2018 Rupees 5101 million) of

vehicles,

Auditors' remuneration
Annual audit fea

Half yearly review fas
Other cerfifications

Reimbursable expenses

OTHER EXPENSES

Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Allowancea undar axpactad credit lossas (Malta 19.3)
Warkers' profit partici pation fund (Naote 8.1)

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Prafit an daposits with banks and TFCs

Interest income on sales tax refund bonds (Mate 16)
Met exchange gain

Income from non-financial assets
Sale of stores and scrap

Gain on zale of property, plant and equipment
Othars

FINANCE COST
Mark-up on:

Long term financing
Short term borrowings
Liahilities against assals subject o financa leasa

Intarast on workers' profit participation fund (Mate 9.1}
Bank charges and commission

TAXATION
Current (Mote 32.1)
Frior year adjustments

2019

2018

{ RUPEES IN THOUSAND )

3,000
450
175

45
3Tio

1,070

47 578
48 649

42 500

476
2,248,190

2,281,166

4,935

21.318
35,952

62, 206
2,353,372

494 125
550,015
3,085
2,127
153,760
1,203,112

416,293

(395)
415,698

2.000

175

a5
2.610

3.031
35,511

B8 696
108.238

ar.xr3

1,004 105

1,041,378

11.931

17215

0146
1,070,524

406 448
JET BE4
1.635
B53
118,775
896,395

204.501

{12,970)
181,531
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The Company falls in the ambit of final tax regime under section 169 of the Income Tax Orgdinance, 2004, Provision for
income lax is made accordingly. Further, provision for lax on other income 15 made at current lax ratles aller considaring tha
rebates and tax credits, if any, and accumulated tax losses, This amount includes super tax of Rupees 25.875 million (2018:
Rupees 28.031 millian) imposad far rehabiliation of lemporarily displaced persons under saction 4B and tax on undistribuled
profits under seciion 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, No provision for deferred faxation is required due to final tax on
exparts. Reconciliation of lax expensa and product of accounting profil multipled by the applicable tax rale s not reguired in

view of final tax on export
EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share
Profit after taxation {Rupees in thousand)

Diwvidend on preference shares (Rupees in thousand)

Waighted averaga number of
ordinary shares iNumbers)
Earnings per share - Basic (Rupees)

Diluted earnings per share

Proafil after taxation
Dividand on preferance shares

(Rupees in thousand)
(Rupees in thousand)

Weighted average number of sharas {Numbaers)

Earnings per share - Diluted (Rupeas)

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:
Depreciaticn

Provision for gratuity

Alloweance for expecied credit losses

{gainyLoss on sale of praperly, plant and squipment
Interest income on sales tax refund bands

Finance cost

Working capital changes (Mot 34.1)

2019

1,332,408

{33,986)
1,288,422

&7 500 000

158.24

1,332,408
(33,066)

1,208 422

73 369 484

17.70

2019

2018

1.113.048

{25,484)
1,087,554

&7 500 000
16.11

1,113,048
(25,484)

1,087 554
71 628 664

15.18

2018

| RUPEES IN THOUSAND )

1,748,108

825,850

238,202

1,070
(21,319)
(476)

1,203,112
(2,530,751}

1.464,753

1,304,578

&92,150
211,782
36,511
3,031

896,395
{3,084,512)

54,536
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Weorking capital changes
2019 2018

(increase) | decreasa in current assets { RUPEES IN THOUSAND )
Siores, spare parts and loose ools (201,018) {266,901}
Slock in rade (1,884 453) 1,108,640
Trade debts (1.494,0546) (3.693881)
Loans and advances 18,628 (28,249)
Short term deposits and prapayments (66,209} (46,231}
Other receivables {110,227} {854,624}

(3.737.275) (3,792, 245)
Increase in trade and other payables 1,206,624 TOF 734

(2,530,751} (3,084,512}
Reconcilation of movements of liabilities to cash flows from fimancing aclivities:

Liabilitins
Long term Short term | against assets Total
financing bBorrowings subject to
finance kase
e [ ] = S R g 31w LY V] o S ———
Bsince se ot 01y 2018 6,105, 246 11,862 878 21,701 18,085 825
Fi i btairsad
oty o 1,049,138 ; : 1,049,138

Short term borowings obtained - net R 2917 488 i 2 317 488
Repayment of financing / finance lease {1,195,945) . {16,875) (1,212,824)
Balance as at 30 June 2019 5058439 14,280,366 4822 20243627

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Board of Direciors of the Company has proposed a cash dividend for the ardinary shareholders of the Company far the year
endad 30 June 2019 amounting to Rupeses 1.50 {(2018: Rupeses 1.50) par share and preferance dividend for the
praferanca sharaholdars of tha Company amounting to Rupases 1.09 (2018: Rupees 0.82) per shara at thair
me&ting hald on 04 COciober 2019, Howaver, thase evenis have been considerad as non-adjusting events under LAS-10
"Events after the Reporting Perod’ and have nat been recognized in thess financial statements.

The Board of Directors of the Compamny in their mesting held cn 08 April 2019 has decided to raise fund 1o meet its working
capital requiremeanis 1o the extent of Rupees 5,000 milllon by way of Sukuk issue. However the proceedings of Issuance of
Sukuk and making related amangaments are under process

50
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REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Aggregate amount charged n these financal slatements for remuneration including all benefils to the Chisl Executiva
Odfficer, Directors and Executives of the Company are as follows:

2019 2018
PTI Chiaef Chief
i Executive | Directors Executives Executive Directors Executives
Officer Officer

[RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Managerial remunerabion 4,000 /a2 120,824 4,000 1.451 73259

Allowances

Howse rent 1,600 353 48,370 1,600 580 29,304

Other allowances 400 AR 12,002 400 145 T.326
6,000 1,324 181,386 &, 000 2,176 109,885

Number of persons 1 2 54 1 2 3

The Chisf Exacutive Officer, stema of the directors and soma of the executives ara provided free usa of Company maintained
vanicles.

Meeting fee amounting 1o Rupses 0.210 million (2018 Rupees 0.120 milion) has been paid to six directors (2018: three
direciors),

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
The refated parties comprise of associated companies, other related paries and key management personnel. The

Company in the normal course of business camas oul ransactions with various related parties. Detail of transactions

with related parties, other than those which have been disclosed alsewhere in these financial stalements are as follows:
20149 2018
| RUPEES IN THOUSAND )

Aszsociated companies

Shanghai Challenge Textile Company Limited

Dividend paid - 0444
Challenge Apparels Limited

Sale of Goods and services (Note 37.2) TBE 497 =
Other related parties

Dividend paid 2 485 2,899

Shanghai Challenge Textile Company Limited (SCTCL) is the associated company due to 25.77% shareholding in the
Company. SCTCL is incorporated in China.

Challenge Apparals Limited (CAL) has bacoma the associated company due to the commaon directorship on 27 October
201B. Thase transactions were accurred after the Comgpany has bacome associated company ta CAL.

Detail of compensation to key management personnel comprising of Chief Executive Officer, Directors and Execulives is
disclosed in Mote 36.

57)
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2019 2018
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
MNumiber of employees as on 30 June 14 181 13 850
Average number of employees during the year 13 991 15 106
2019 2018

{ FIGURES IN THOUSAND )
PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

SPINNING
Production al normial capacily converied 1o 20s
count based on thres shifts per day (Kgs.) 551 53a7

Actual production converted to 20s count

baszed on thrae shifts par day (K. 5121 4 811
KNITTING

Production at normal capacity based on

three shifts par day (Kgs.) 4T 555 45 517
Actual production based on threa shifts per day (Kos.) 27 664 23924

DYEING ! FINISHING

Production at normal capacity on reactive
dyeing basis at three shifts per day {Kgs. ) 45 525 41 004

Acthal production convaried on reactive
dyeing basis at three shifts per day (Kgs.) 26 24 22 683

GARMENTS

Production at normal capacity of normal /
average garmenis capacity based on
single shift per day {Dzn.) 523 6.2,

Actual production of normal / average garments
capacity basis on single shift per day {Dzn.) 3154 3985

REASONS FOR LOW PRODUCTION

Under utilizaton of available capacity = due 1> normal maintenance. Kniting machines are avallable for different types of
fabric for which orders are based on seasonal basis rasulting under utilization of achual knitting capacity.

D



mtm

[ — YT

40 BEGMENT INFORMATION

T Efimination of infer-sageant
Spinning Knitting Pracessing & Garments Sl Total-Company
2009 | zo18 | 2019 | 2018 2000 | 2008 [ 2019 | 2018 | 2019 | 2018
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Reaeni
Exfermal T R T L) 28 135014 | 32367000 | 243082 - . Maata| a1
Inerzagen 2,327 938 1EE0M7T 13,846 2% 10714213 20557 17134 | [8.24.786) (12612264 . .
ITE A AZERE4  WIBESE0  0ESDIZT  IZBEVEET 29045452 (G2 TEE) (1ZFY  MININ NELB
Lol of saing (IEST08)  (A1SE.225) (13900987 (10538305 (Z000GE20) (255054000 162MTNF  1ZEI2Z84 (0417530 (X005
Grosz profi W62 100,63 IWEETY MOTE 201088 R430GE Z : ITEEBT 385134
Digtrbstion ool [HEA1E)  dadlE] (AN (ZETE)l  (Z2A3E3| (1882218 - - [2A40E7E] (206338
Jminishralive sxparsas dz2em|  E1eE)  adam|  ooEsed| (srseR)| s . : EETE| e mg
(52,2051 E0E2 [F08,547) (EEXE (FIREEDD)  (R302F0N) - - BT I5 (ZBI2E6
Froil befors  f@xaion
and unalocated income
A s #1005 T BA F1,43 L R K ) : - B6405 153658
Linealiosled roore: and expenss
Diher mperges (48, 648} [ 08,23
Ciher rgor Pk L S v
Firaris ol i ach e [B06.395;
Tasalian 415698 1913
Prosil after ation 1352408 1,113,048
40,1 Reconciliation of reportable segment assets and liabilitias
Spinning Knitting Processing & Gamments Total-Company
e | 2018 2018 | 2018 Mg | 2018 e [ 2018
{RUPFEES IN THOUSANE)
Eenment ssasls 1H4347  1FI30E3 ZEOTO90 RO0GHA  IETETIT  13ZMDA0  IORRESS 174N
Uinadlocstedd asses 16445457 1472 ATR
Todal assets as per staberment of financial position a5 31220508
Eegment Fabiifes 190083 1MREEY 103025 SEEOHS 3430197 JOEmEME  40S0ETE BE0S50
inboztedd §ahiiias MARGAZT 18378557
Todal liabilities as per statement of financial position HEWTE  NESIM
40,2 Geographical Infermation
40 .2.1The Compary’s revenue from exlema! cusiomers by gecgraphical locatdon Is cetaled below,
Spinning Knitting Processing & Garmants Total-Companmy
019 | 2018 2019 | 208 2019 | 208 019 | 28
{RUPFEES i THOUSAND)
Amainic and Canada . 057 . - MUEBE3AE SAXDAD  1OBBE3ER 15431006
Europe - - - BAM0IZR S203m BM032E 520,38
sz, Mfrice and Austrdia 2732 87 615 : + 5EEl zenigT 1 MTISE 3008083
Fakstn 1,183,067 581,275 440700 135014 2AMIN iE6aFE 4490557 E7E158D

1,810, 51% 107,847 0 25 135014 3236070 038000 MAH13T8  A0AE15
40.2.2 Al norecument assets of fe Company s 21 repoding dale are leated and operalrg in Pakistan

40.3  Revenue from major customers

Reverue from major cusomers of iha Company's Garments segrent incudes beo customers (2078; four) reprezentng Russes 12,559 milion (2018: Rupess 16,567 milion), Reverue
fripin odhier segaments ol ha Compary does nol indade oy major cugkamer,
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41.
411

(a)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors

Tha Company's activities expose it fo a variafy of financial risks: market risk {including currency risk, other price risk
and interest rate risk), credit Ask and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management programme focusas on
the unpredictability of financial markats and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial
parfarmance.

Risk management is camied out by the Company's finance department under policies approved by the Board of
Directors. The Board provides principles for overall sk management, as well as policies covenng specific areas such
85 currency risk, other price nisk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, investment of excess bguidity and use of
nan-derivalive financial instrumants,

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates, Cumency risk anses mainly from fulure commernzial transactions or
receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in forsion currencies.

The Company is exposad to currency risk arising from various curmency exposures. primarily with respact to
the United States Dollar (LUSD) and Bura. Currently, the Company's foraign exchange risk exposure is
restricted to bank balances and the amounts receivable / payable from [ to the foreign entities. The
Company's exposung fo curency risk was as follows:

2019 2018
Cash at banks - USD &1,387 B1.279
Trade debls - USD 56,922,240 68,101,371
Trade debts - Eura 531,976 76,845
Trade and other payable - USD (591,635) {(33,556)
Mot exposure - USD 56,391,992 68,125 094
Mel exposure - Euro 531,976 76,845
Fallawing significant exchange rates were applied dunng the year;
Rupees per US Dollar
Avarage rate 135 B6 100.74
Reporiing date rate 159.75 121.40
Rupees per Euro
Avarage rate 154 95 131.10
Reporting date rate 178.00 141.33

Sensitivity analysis

If the functional currency, at reporting date, had weakened ( strengthened by 5% against the USD0 and Euro
with all other variables held constant. the impact on profit after taxation for the year would have been Rupees
427809 million (2018: Rupees 352 886 million) and Rupees 44588 million (2018: Rupeas 0.516 million) higher
{ lower respectively, mainly as a result of exchange gains / losses on translation of foreign exchange
denominated financial instruments. Currency risk sensitivity to foreign exchange movements has been
calculated on a symmetric basis, In managemant's opinion, tha sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of
inherent currency risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the vear,

@
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(i)  Other price risk
Qther price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changas in market pricas (other than those arising from intarest rate risk or currency risk), whether thase
changes are caused by factors specific 1o the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all
similar financial instrument traded in the market. The Company is not exposed o commodity price risk.

(ili)  Interest rate risk
This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

The Company's interest rate risk arises from long term financing, liabilities against assets subject to finance
lease, shor term borrowings. sales tax refund bonds, term finance cerificates and bank balances in saving
accounis. Financlal insfruments at variable ralas expose the Company to cash flow infenest rate rsk. Financial
instruments fixed rate expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk,

Al the reporting date, the imerast rate profile of the Company's interast baaring firancial instruments was.
2019 2018
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Fixed rate instruments
Financial assoets

Sales tax refund bonds 475,600 >
Financial liabilities
Long term financing 2228634 1.580.514

Floating rate instruments
Financial assets

Bank balances - saving accounts 162 654 608,501
Term finance cedificates 100,000 2
Financial liabilities

Lang term financing 3,729,805 4,514,732
Liabilities against assels subject 1o finance leaze 31,8934 21,701
Shaort term barrowings 14,280,366 11,962 BTH

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
Ioss, Therefore, & change in interest rate at the reporting dete waoukd not affect profit or loss of the Company,

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

If interest ratas, al the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher  kower with all ofher variables held constant,
profit after taxation for tha year would have been Rupees 168.993 milion [(2018: Rupaas 150.963 million)
lower / higher, mainly as a result of higher ! lower interest expensze { income on floating rate financial
instruments. This analysis is prepared assuming that amounts of liabilities cutstanding at reporting date were
outstanding for the whole year.

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk reprasents the risk thal one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the athar party by
failing to discharge an cbligation. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.
The maximum exposure {o credit risk gt the reporting dale was as follows:

Investmenis 576,076 L

Trade debis 10,711,672 9,276,084
Loans and advancas 36,939 53,324
Depasils 205,038 127,106
Other recaivables 9,769 36,622
Bank balances 378,247 618,243

11,917,741 10,111,379
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The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external
credil ratings (if availabla) or to historical information about counterparty defaull rate. The external credit mting of
Company's bankers iz given below:

Rating 2019 | 2018
Short term || Longterm | Agency (Rupees in thousand)

Banks

Mational Bank of Pakistan Al+ AAA PACRA 34 646 247,009
Allied Bank Limited Al e PACRA 106 103
Askar Bank Limited A+ AbA+ PACRA 41,986 17,908
Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ Al PACRA 621 44
First Women Bank Limited A2 A PACRA 247156 1,348
Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AAA WIS 27 6ES 20,487
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited Al Ad+ PACRA, 80,204 139,498
Bank Al-Habib Limited A+ Ah4 PACRA 3,925 G208
MCB Bank Limited A1+ AAA PACRA 20,223 14,961
The Bank of Punjab Al+ AA PACRA 3,434 27,435
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited A1+ A VIS 5,085 3,040
Standard Charlerad Bank (Pakistan) Limited A1+ AAA PACRA, a7 714
United Bank Limited A1+ AAR VIS 38,119 21,555
AlBaraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited A1 A PACRA 1,411 1.553
Summit Bank Limited * NI MiA VIS 2524 65,8955
Soneri Bank Limited Al+ M- PACRA 11,458 1478
Samba Bank Limited A1 AA VIS 62 803 8872
Industrizl and Commercial Bank of China P-1 Al Moody's 4,544 G674
Meezan Bank Limited A1+ Ah+ VIS 11,410 38,946
Tha Bank of Khyber A1 A VIS 50 a0

a78.247 616,243

VIS hasz suspended the credit ratings of the Bank due to non-availability of updated financial information, as no
financial statements have been made available by the Bank after the pericd ended 31 March 2018,

As at 30 June 2018, trade debis of Rupees 1,035.306 million (2018; Rupees BS7 983 million) were past due but not
impaired. These relate 1o a number of independent customers from whom thera iz no recent history of default. Tha
ageing analysis of these trade debls 15 as loliows:

2019 2018
(RUFEES IN THOUSAND)
Related party
Uple 1 monlh 22 983 -
1 o & months 81,704 -
104,687 -
Others
Upte 1 month 655,281 TO0,103
1 to B months 167,031 80,182
More than 6 months 108,307 17,695
830,619 897983
1,035,306 BOT.983

Due to the Company's long standing business relationships with these counierparties and after giving due
consideration to their strong financial standing, management does not expect non-performance by these
counterparties on their obligations to the Company. Accordingly the credit risk is minimal.

@
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(¢) Liguidity risk
Liguidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilites.

The Company manages liguidity sk by maintaining sufficlent cash and the availability of funding through an adeguate
amount of committed credit facilities. At 30 June 2019, the Company had Rupeas 1,674,634 million (2018: Rupsas
1,682,122 million) available borrowing limits from financial institutions and Rupees 380263 million (2018: Rupees
620.380 million) cash and bank balances. Management belisves the liquidity risk o be low. Following are the
contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments. The amounts disclosed in the table are
undiscounted cash flows.

Following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2019:

Carrying Contractual | & months or More than 2
Amount Cash flows less 6-12 months | 1-2 Years Years
( RUPEES IN THOUSAND )

Mon-derivative financial liabilies:
Lang term financing 5,858.439 7.158 4156 1129816 1.038.075 1,902 244 3,087 281
Liabilities against assets
subject to finance leass 31,834 37,288 7,790 4,623 24 B8T3 -
Unclaimed dividend 33,212 33,213 33.213 - - -
Short term bormrowing s 14,280,366 14,399,737 13,859,737 00,000 - -
Trade and other payahles 3,747 343 3,747,343 3,706 436 40,807 - -
Accrued mark-up 257,624 257 624 257 624 - - -

24,308,919 25,633,619 19,034,616 1.584 605 1,927,117 3.087 281

Following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2018:

Carrying || Contractual | & months or &12 monthsl 12 Years More than 2
Amount Cash flows less YEars

( RUPEES IN THOUSAND )

Mon-derivative financial liabilities:

Long term financing 6,105,246 7.186 432 985,142 976,221 1519454 3405615
Liabilities against azsels subject to

finance lease 21,701 22674 9,793 5957 6,924 -
Unclaimed dividend 10.813 10,813 10,813 - - -
=hort term bomowing s 11,862,878  12.040,792 8,935,792 3,105,000 - -
Trade and other payables 2,555 732 2555732 2459 411 55,74 - -
Accrued mark-up 191,768 191,768 191,768 - - -

20,848,138 22008217 12632719 4,142,899 1826378  3.405615

— - - = ———————————— -~

Short term bomowings and trade and other payables are financial liabilities of revolving nature which will get renewed
as part of working capital management. The rates of interest / mark-up have been disclesed in Mote &, Mote 7 and
MNote 11 of thesa financial stalemants.
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(d) Capital risk management

The objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a gaing concern so that
It can continue to provide relums for shareholders and benefits for other slakeholders; and lo maintain a strong
capital base to support the sustained development of its business.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitaring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it in the
light of changes in economic condiions. In order lo maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjus!
the amount of dividend paid 1o the shareholders or issue new shares.

The Company finances its expansion projects through equity, bormowings and management of its working capital with
a view 1o maintain an approgriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk.

41.2 Financial instruments by categories

At amortized Loans and
cost racelvablas
2019 2018

[RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
As at 30 June
Financial assets as per statement of financial position

Investments 576,076 -
Trada debis 10,711,672 9,276,084
Loans and advances 36,930 53,324
Deposils 206,038 127,106
Other recanvablas 09,769 36,622
Cash and bank balances 380,463 620,380
11,819 857 1D|1‘|:1-|51E

At amortized cost

2019 2018
[RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position

Long term financing 5,958,439 6,105,246
Liabilities against azsels subjact 1o finance lease 31,834 21,701
Unclaimead dvidend 33213 10,813
Sher term borrowings 14 280 366 11,962 6878
Trade and other payables 3,747 343 2,585,732
Accrued mark-up 257 624 181,768

24,308 919 20,848,138

41.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial llabilities

Az on reporting date, recegnized financial Instruments are not subject lo offsatling as there are no enforceable master
nalling arrangements and similar agreamenis,

42. RECOGHNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
Certain financial assets and financial liabilities are not measured at fair value if the camrying amounts are a reasonable
approximation of fair value, Due to shorl term nature, carrying amounts of certain financial assets and financial
liabilties are considered to be the sama as their fair value. For the majority of the non-current receivables, tha fair
valuas are also not significantly different 1o their carrying amaunis. Judgemeniﬁ and estimaltes are made in
determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are recognized and measured &t fair value in thess
financial statements, To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs usad in determining fair value, the
Company classifies its financial instruments into foliowing three levels, However, as &t the reporting date, the
Company has no such type of financial instruments which are required to be grouped into thesa levels. These lavels

are explained as under:
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Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, trading
and equity securities) is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The quoted market price
usead for financial assets held by the Company is the currant bid price. Thesa instrumants are included in leval 1.

Lewvel 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2,

Level 3: If one or mare of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3. This is the case for unlisted eguity securities.

43. RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMEMTS - NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
(I} Fair value hierarchy

The judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the non-financial assets that are recognized
and measured at fair value in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used
in dalermining fair value, the Company has classified its non-financial assals inlo the following three levals.

| Leval1 | Level2 | Level3 | Total |
At 30 June 2019 weeeermnmn e RUPEES IN THOUSAND)msme e e
Freehold land . 1,462,233 - 1462233
At 30 June 2018
Frashold land - 1462233 - 1462233

Tha Company's palicy is 1o recognize transfars into and transfers oul of fair value hierarchy levals as at the end of the
reporling peariod.
Thare wera na transfer batween level 1 and 2 for MECAUTTIFGg fair value maasurameant during the year, Further, there was
no transfer in and out of level 3,

(i) WValuation technigues used to determine level 2 fair values
The Company certifies the valuation for its freehold land (classified as property, plant and equipment) regularly from
independent valuer. The management updates the assessment of the fair value of freehold land, taking into account
the mast recent independent valuation, The management determines freebold land's value within 8 rangs of
reazonable fair value estimates. The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for similar lands.
Valuation processes

Tha Company eangagas external, indapandant and qualified valuer to determine the fair value of the Company's
freerhald land.

Changes in fair values are analyzed at the reporting date during the annual valuation discussion between the Chisf Financial
Officer and the valuers. As parl of this discussion tha team presents a report that explains the reason for the fair value
mowements,

44, DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements were authorized for izsue on 04 October 2019 by the Board of Directors of the Company.
45, CORRESPONDING FIGURES

Corrasponding figuras have baen raarranged and reclassifiad, wharaver necessary, far the purposa of comparisan. Howeaver,
no significant rearrangements have been made.

46. GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees unless otherwise siated.
Staternent under section 232({1) of the Companies Act, 2017:

The Chief Executive Officer of the Company is presently out of the country. Tharefore thess financial statements have been signed by
two Directors and Chief Financial Officer as required under section 232 (1) of the Companies Act, 2017.

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

@



1. Incorporation Number
2. Mame of the Company

FORM 34

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 30 JUNE, 2019

0012223

MASQOD TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
3. Pattemn of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at 30.06.2019

mem

Maesod Teutis bl Lid.

|¢. No.of shareholders | | Shareholdings | | Total shares held |
ORDINARY SHARES:

583 Shareholding  from 1 to 100 Shares 40,697
482 Shareholding  from 101 to 500 Shares 108,229
82 Shareholding  from 501 to 1000 Shares 71,445
109 Shareholding from 1001 to 5000 Shares 262,765
16 Shareholding  from 5001 to 10000 Shares 107,210
6 Shareholding  from 10001 to 15000 Shares 74,949
6 Shareholding  from 15001 to 20000 Shares 102,400
2 Shareholding  from 20001 to 25000 Shares 48 187
1 Shareholding  from 25001 to 30000 Shares 25,900
3 Shareholding  from 30001 to 35000 Shares 101,000
2 Shareholding  from 32001 to 40000 Shares 76,400
1 Shareholding  from 40001 to 45000 Shares 42 187
3 Shareholding  from 45001 to 50000 Shares 145,600
1 Sharehnldin_g_ fram 50001 to 55000 Shares 50,001
1 Shareholding  from 85001 to  G0000 Shares 55,350
1 Shareholding  from 65001 to  TFO000 Shares 66,001
1 Shareholding  from 85001 to 90000 Shares 86,637
1 Sharehuldﬁa from 80001 to 95000 Shares 92,605
1 Shareholding  from 100001 to 105000 Shares 104,962
1 Shareholding  from 1058001 to 110000  Shares 110,000
2 Shareholding  from 120001 to 125000 Shares 246,274
1 Shareholding  from 390001 to 395000 Shares 392,750
1 Shareholding  from 415001 to 420000 Shares 419,625
1 Shareholding  from BR0001 to 695000 Shares 692,050
1 Shareholding  from 785001 to 790000 Shares 785,100
1 Shareholding _ from 1555001 to 1560000 Shares 1,556,718
1 Shareholding  from 1725001 to 1730000 Shares 1,726,400
1 Shareholding  from 2210001 to 2215000 Shares 2,214,169
1 Shareholding  from 370001 to 3375000 Shares 3,373,987
1 Ehar&huldina from 4385001 to 4390000 Shares 4 387,500
1 Shareholding  from 4535001 to 4540000 Shares 4,536,019
1 Shareholding  from TE35001 to 7640000 Shares 7,636,550
1 Shareholding  from 17325001 to 17400000 Shares 17,396,833
1 Shareholding from 20360001 to 20385000 Shares 20,362,500
1328 Total 67,500,000
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PREFEREMCE SHARES:
1 Shareholding from 245001 to 250000 Shares 250.000
1 Shareholding from 2495001 to 2500000 Shares 2,500,000
1 Shareholding from 3665001 to 3670000 Shares 3,666,668
1 Shareholding  from 4435001 to 4440000 Shares 4,440,000
3 Shareholding from 4995001 to 5000000 Shares 15,000,000
1 Shareholding  from 5305001 to 5310000 Shares 5,310,000
8 Total 31,166,668
|5. Categories of shareholders | shares held || Percentage |
ORDINARY SHARES:
5.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, etc. | 1,609,905 | | 2_39|
h.2 Assoclated Companles, undertakings and
related parties, 17,596,533 dd
5.3 NIT and ICP [ 2,215,019 | | 3.28 |
5.4 Banks, Development Financial
Instituticns, Mon Banking Financial 4,565,738 6.76
Instituticns.
5.5 Insurance Companies | 400,444 | | 0.59 |
5.6 Modarabas and Mutual Funds [ 3,100 J I 0.00 |
5.7 Share holders holding 10% | 27,999,050 | | 41 _43|
5.8. General Public
a. Local 2,632,468 3.90
b. Foreign
5.9. Othars-Jaint Stock Companies/Co-
operative Societies, 10,677,443 15.82
Total Ordinary Shares [ 67,500,000 | | 100.00 |
FPREFERENCE SHARES:
5.3 Banks, Development Financial
Instituticns, Mon Banking Financial 31,166,668 100.00
Instituticns,
6. Signature of Chief Exacutive/ Secratary
7.  Mame of Signatory I MNISAR AHMAD ALVI |

8. Designation

9. MNIC Mumber

10, Date

COMPANY SECRETARY

[2[3]1]ofa]-f2]efo[3]4f6]0f-]9]

Day

Mont

Yaar

[o]4]

[1]o] [2fe]1]9]
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NAMEWISE CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS AS ON 30-06-2019

Name Shares Held | Total Shares |Percentage
ORDINARY SHARES
Directors:
MR, SHAHID NAZIR AHMAD Chief Executive Officer 1,556,71
MR. NASEER AHMAD SHAH Chairman 42 187
MR. SHAHID |OBAL Director 5,000
MR. EHABIR AHMAD ABID Director 6,000
MR. SHOAIB AHMAD KHAN Director -
(NIT Momines)
MR. SHIBIN YANG Director -
(Shanghai Challenge - Momines)
M= CHEN YAN Director -
{Shanghal Challenge - Nominee) 1,609,905 2.39
hareholders Holding 10% or More:
MRS, NAZIA NAZIR 20,362 500
ZHEJIANG XINAD INDUSTRY COMPANY LIMITED 7,636,550 27,999,050 41.48
Associated Undertakings:
SHANGHAI CHALLENGE TEXTILE CO., LIMITED 17,396,833 17,396,833 25.7TT
Investment Companies:
INVESTMENT CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN 850 0.00
Fi ial Institutions:
Banks:
HABIB METROPOLITAN BANK LIMITED 25,8900
IDBP (ICP UNIT) 3,250
NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN 4 536,588 4,565,738 6.76
Insurance Companies
AGRO GENERAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 7,594
DELTA INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 100
STATE LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION OF PAKISTAN 392,7h0 400,444 0.59
Modarabas
THIRD PRUDENTIAL MODARABA, 2,900
UNICARP MODARABA 200 3,100 0.00
Mutual Fund
CDC - TRUSTEE NATIOMAL INVESTMENT {UNIT) TRUST 2214168 2,214,169 31.28

68
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MName Shares Held | Total Shares |Percentage
Joint Stock Companies And Others
BEACON IMPEX (PVT ) LIMITED 3,373,987
FORTRESS TEXTILE (PVT.) LIMITED 2,616,462
HM INVESTMENTS (PVT.) LIMITED 4,900
KOHISTAN CORPORATION (PVT.) LIMITED 4 38T 500
LIBERTY MILLS LIMITED 13,000
M/S RANG COMMODITIES ( PVT) LIMITED 1,000
MAPLE LEAF CAPITAL LIMITED 50,001
MRA SECURITIES LIMITED - MF 6,000
NMH SECURITIES (PVT) LIMITED i}
PASHA SECURITIES (PVT.) LIMITED 100
PRUDENTIAL CAP.MANAGEMENT LIMITED 1,600
PAKISTAN KUWAIT INVSTMENT (PVT.)LTD 2,600
SHAFFI SECURITIES (PVT.) LIMITED 2,000
SAVARI (PVT.) LIMITED an0
SOFTWARE CREATIONS (PVT.) LIMITED 121,374
TRUSTEE NEP EMP BENEVOLENT FUND TRUST 3,249
TRUSTEE NBF EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND 92 805
Y.S. SECURITIES & SERVICES (PVT.) LIMITED 160 | 10,677,443 15.82
General Public: 2,632,468 3.90
TOTAL ORIDINANRY SHARES 67,500,000 100
PREFERENCE SHARES
Banks:
ASKARI BANK LIMITED - 2,500,000
HABIB BAMNK LIMITED - 4,440,000
MCB BANK LIMITED - 5,000,000
MATIOMAL BAMNK OF PAKISTAMN = 5,000,000
UNITED BANK LIMITED - 3,666,668
210,606,668 6612
Investment Companies:
PAKISTAN KUWAIT INVESTMENT CO. (PVT.)LTD - 5,000,000 16.04
KOHISTAN CORPORATION (PVT.)}LTD - 250,000 0.80
SUNDAR IMPEX (PVT) LTD - 5,310,000 17.04
TOTAL PREFERENCE SHARES 31,166,668 100
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FORM OF PROXY

Mo. of Ordinary Shares Held._ Folio Na. COC Afc No.

I'We,

of

being a member of MASOOD TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED hereby appoint

(NAME)
of

(being a member of the Company) as my'our proxy to vote for mefus and on my/our behalf at the
35" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at its Registered Office at Universal

House, P-17/1, New Civil Lines, Bilal Road, Faisalabad on Monday, the 28" day of October, 2019
at 11:00 A.M. or any adjournment thereof.

As witnessed my hands this day of 2018

Signed by me in the presence of witness:

(Signature of witness) (Member's Signature)
CNIC. CNIC.
Five Rupeeas
Revenue
Stamp

Note: Proxies, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company's Registered Office not later than
forty-eight hours before the ime for helding the meeting and must be duly stamped, signed and witnessed.



